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— Consolidated Balance Sheet —
THE 77 BANK, LTD. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
March 31, 2024

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2024 2023 2024
ASSETS:
Cash and due from banks (Notes 4 and 28) ¥ 1,288,993 ¥ 1,322,376 $ 8,513,262
Debt purchased 800 4,000 5,283
Trading account securities (Note 5) 16,328 20,210 107,839
Money held in trust (Notes 6 and 28) 120,536 114,557 796,090
Investment securities
(Notes 5, 7, 11, 13, 28, 29 and 30) 3,077,129 3,046,780 20,323,155
Loans and bills discounted
(Notes 7, 13, 14, 28, 29 and 30) 5,854,516 5,557,388 38,666,640
Foreign exchanges (Notes 7 and 8) 5,178 12,206 34,198
Lease receivables and investments in leases
(Note 27) 22,614 20,948 149,356
Other assets (Notes 7, 13 and 29) 108,983 104,953 719,787
Tangible fixed assets (Notes 9, 10 and 18):
Buildings 7,028 7,642 46,417
Land 18,140 18,260 119,807
Lease assets 44 45 290
Construction in progress 919 24 6,069
Other tangible fixed assets 4,646 4,698 30,684
Intangible fixed assets:
Software 10 29 66
Other intangible fixed assets 102 105 673
Asset for employees’ retirement benefits (Note 17) 6,119 40,413
Deferred tax assets (Note 25) 766 852 5,059
Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and
guarantees (Notes 7, 11 and 30) 30,254 27,155 199,815
Reserve for loan losses (62,015) (61,388) (409,583)
TOTAL ¥10,501,098 ¥10,200,848 $69,355,379
LIABILITIES:
Deposits (Notes 13, 15 and 28) ¥ 8,935,104 ¥ 8,885,791 $59,012,641
Call money and bills sold 27,026
Payables under securities lending transactions (Note 13) 9,020 1,293 59,573
Borrowed money (Notes 13, 16 and 28) 808,703 642,303 5,341,146
Foreign exchanges (Note 8) 292 338 1,928
Borrowed money from trust account 1,037 6,848
Liability for employees’ retirement benefits (Note 17) 7,720 15,960 50,987
Reserve for stock-based benefits (Note 19) 931 941 6,148
Reserve for contingent losses 876 739 5,785
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 25) 36,024 4,443 237,923
Acceptances and guarantees (Note 11) 30,254 27,155 199,815
Other liabilities (Notes 18 and 29) 69,431 90,366 458,562
Total liabilities 9,899,398 9,696,360 65,381,401
EQUITY (Notes 19, 20 and 34):
Common stock—authorized, 268,800,000 shares;
issued, 76,655,746 shares in 2024 and 2023 24,658 24,658 162,855
Capital surplus 20,076 20,075 132,593
Retained earnings 433,580 411,622 2,863,615
Less: treasury stock—at cost, 2,569,419 shares and
2,668,854 shares in 2024 and 2023, respectively (6,145) (6,325) (40,585)
Accumulated other comprehensive income:
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities (Note 5) 125,123 59,919 826,385
Deferred losses on derivatives under hedge accounting
(Note 29) i (95) (66) (627)
Defined retirement benefit plans (Note 17) 4,503 (5,396) 29,740
Total equity 601,700 504,487 3,973,977
TOTAL ¥10,501,098 ¥10,200,848 $69,355,379

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



— Consolidated Statement of Income —
THE 77 BANK, LTD. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
Year Ended March 31, 2024

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2024 2023 2024
INCOME:
Interest income:
Interest on loans and discounts ¥ 52,039 ¥ 46,712 $343,695
Interest and dividends on trading account and
investment securities 42177 31,301 278,561
Other 742 1,093 4,900
Trust fees (Note 31) 20 132
Fees and commissions (Notes 30 and 31) 21,410 19,896 141,404
Other operating income (Note 21) 14,470 14,407 95,568
Gains on sales of investment securities 14,555 6,033 96,129
Gains on sales of money held in trust 4,339 1,547 28,657
Other income (Note 22) 796 1,061 5,257
Total income 150,552 122,053 994,333
EXPENSES:
Interest expense:
Interest on deposits 653 426 4,312
Interest on borrowings and rediscounts 777 332 5,131
Other 801 477 5,290
Fees and commissions 5,654 5,670 37,342
Other operating expenses (Note 23) 37,670 22,785 248,794
General and administrative expenses 54,384 53,475 359,183
Provision for reserve for loan losses 3,235 809 21,365
Other expenses (Notes 10 and 24) 3,169 2,662 20,929
Total expenses 106,346 86,640 702,371
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 44,206 35,412 291,962
INCOME TAXES (Note 25):
Current 14,308 8,948 94,498
Deferred 96 1,407 634
Total income taxes 14,404 10,355 95,132
NET INCOME 29,802 25,056 196,829
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT ¥ 29,802 ¥ 25,056 $196,829
Yen U.S. Dollars
PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK (Note 33):
Basic net income ¥402.40 ¥338.74 $2.65
Cash dividends applicable to the year 122.50 90.00 0.80

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

— Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income —
THE 77 BANK, LTD. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
Year Ended March 31, 2024

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2024 2023 2024

NET INCOME ¥ 29,802 ¥ 25,056 $196,829
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (Note 26):

Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities 65,203 (27,506) 430,638

Deferred (losses) gains on derivatives under hedge accounting (29) 68 (191)

Defined retirement benefit plans 9,899 (590) 65,378

Total other comprehensive income (loss) 75,073 (28,027) 495,825

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) ¥104,875 ¥ (2,971) $692,655

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO—
Owners of the parent ¥104,875 ¥ (2,971) $692,655

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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— Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity —

THE 77 BANK, LTD. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
Year Ended March 31, 2024

Thousands Millions of Yen
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Number of Deferred
Shares of Unrealized  Losses on
Common Gainson  Derivatives ~ Defined
Stock Common Capital Retained  Treasury Available-for- under Hedge Retirement Total
Outstanding  Stock Surplus Earnings Stock  Sale Securities Accounting Benefit Plans  Equity
BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2022 73,922 ¥24,658 ¥20,075  ¥392,541 ¥(6,445) ¥ 87,425 ¥(134)  ¥4,805) ¥513,316
Net income attributable
to owners of the parent 25,056 25,056
Cash dividends, ¥80.00
per share (5,976) (5,976)
Purchase of treasury stock (2) (@) (4)
Sales of treasury stock 67 123 123
Net change in the year (27,506) 68 (590)  (28,027)
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2023 73,986 24,658 20,075 411,622 (6,325) 59,919 (66) (5,396) 504,487
Net income attributable
to owners of the parent 29,802 29,802
Cash dividends, ¥105.00
per share (7,844) (7,844)
Purchase of treasury stock (2) ) 7)
Sales of treasury stock 101 187 187
Net change in the year 65,203 (29) 9,899 75,073
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2024 74,086  ¥24,658 ¥20,076  ¥433,580 ¥(6,145)  ¥125,123 ¥ (95  ¥4503 ¥601,700
Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Deferred
Unrealized ~ Losses on
Gainson  Derivatives  Defined
Common Capital Retained  Treasury Available-for- under Hedge Retirement Total
Stock Surplus  Earnings Stock  Sale Securities Accounting Benefit Plans  Equity
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2023 $162,855  $132,587 $2,718,591  $(41,773) $395,740 $(435)  $(35,638) $3,331,926
Net income attributable
to owners of the parent 196,829 196,829
Cash dividends, $0.69
per share (51,806) (51,806)
Purchase of treasury stock (46) (46)
Sales of treasury stock 1,235 1,235
Net change in the year 430,638 (191) 65378 495,825
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2024 $162,855  $132,593 $2,863,615  $(40,585) $826,385 $(627) $ 29,740 $3,973,977

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



— Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows —
THE 77 BANK, LTD. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
Year Ended March 31, 2024

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2024 2023 2024
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Income before income taxes ¥ 44206 ¥ 35412 $ 291,962
Adjustments for:
Income taxes—paid (9,415) (11,487) (62,182)
Depreciation and amortization 3,150 3,010 20,804
Losses on impairment of fixed assets 34 364 224
Net change in reserve for loan losses 627 (1,726) 4,141
Net change in reserve for contingent losses 136 (49) 898
Net change in reserve for stock-based benefits (10) 48 (66)
Net change in asset for employees’ retirement benefits (596) (3,936)
Net change in liability for employees’ retirement benefits 460 (681) 3,038
Interest income (94,959) (79,107) (627,164)
Interest expense 2,231 1,237 14,734
(Gains) losses on investment securities—net (608) 1,401 (4,015)
Gains on money held in trust—net (2,308) (778) (15,243)
Foreign exchange gains—net (25,135) (10,532) (166,006)
Gains on sales and disposals of fixed assets—net (53) (85) (350)
Net change in loans and bills discounted (297,128) (228,045) (1,962,406)
Net change in deposits 49,313 66,047 325,691
Net change in borrowed money (except for subordinated loans) 166,399 (525,789) 1,098,996
Net change in due from banks (except for the Bank of Japan) 2,046 939 13,512
Net change in call loans and bills bought 3,199 (2,000) 21,128
Net change in call money and bills sold (27,026) (2,102) (178,495)
Net change in payables under securities lending transactions 7,726 42 51,027
Net change in trading account securities 3,882 150 25,638
Net change in foreign exchanges (assets) 7,028 (5,168) 46,417
Net change in foreign exchanges (liabilities) (45) 157 (297)
Net change in lease receivables and investments in leases (1,666) (424) (11,003)
Net change in borrowed money from trust account 1,037 6,848
Interest received 94,869 80,104 626,570
Interest paid (2,230) (1,184) (14,728)
Other—net (28,886) (1,561) (190,780)
Total adjustments (147,928) (717,220) (977,002)
Net cash used in operating activities—(Forward) ¥ (103,721) ¥ (681,807) $ (685,034)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of investment securities (544,082) (469,309) (3,593,435)
Proceeds from sales of investment securities 294,734 189,338 1,946,595
Proceeds from maturity of investment securities 331,619 334,190 2,190,205
Increase in money held in trust (5,000) (20,700) (33,022)
Proceeds from dispositions of money held in trust 5,940 11,584 39,231
Purchases of tangible fixed assets (3,403) (2,647) (22,475)
Proceeds from sales of tangible fixed assets 464 702 3,064
Purchases of intangible fixed assets
Payment for execution of asset retirement obligations (86) (88) (567)
Net cash provided by investing activities 80,187 43,071 529,601
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of treasury stock (7) (4) (46)
Proceeds from sales of treasury stock
Dividends paid (7,830) (5,970) (51,713)
Net cash used in financing activities (7,837) (5,974) (51,760)
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 35 21 231
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (31,336) (644,689) (206,961)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,310,932 1,955,622 8,658,159
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR (Note 4) ¥1,279,596  ¥1,310,932 $ 8,451,198

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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— Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements —

THE 77 BANK, LTD. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
Year Ended March 31, 2024

1. BASIS OF PRESENTING CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with the provisions set
forth in the Japanese Financial Instruments and
Exchange Act and its related accounting regulations and
the Enforcement Regulation for the Banking Law of Japan
(the “Banking Law”), and in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Japan, which are different
in certain respects as to the application and disclosure
requirements of International Financial Reporting
Standards.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements,
certain reclassifications and rearrangements have been
made to the consolidated financial statements issued
domestically in order to present them in a form which is
more familiar to readers outside Japan. In addition,
certain reclassifications have been made to the 2023
consolidated financial statements to conform to the
classifications used in 2024.

In accordance with the Japanese Financial Instruments
and Exchange Act and other relevant regulations, all
Japanese yen figures in the consolidated financial
statements have been rounded down to the nearest
million yen, except for per share data. Accordingly, the
total of each account may not be equal to the combined
total of individual items. Also, U.S. dollar amounts have
been rounded down to the nearest thousand dollars.

The consolidated financial statements are stated in
Japanese yen, the currency of the country in which The
77 Bank, Ltd. (the “Bank”) is incorporated and operates.
The translations of Japanese yen amounts into U.S.
dollar amounts are included solely for the convenience of
readers outside Japan and have been made at the rate of
¥151.41 to U.S.$1, the approximate rate of exchange as
of March 31, 2024. Such translations should not be
construed as representations that the Japanese yen
amounts could be converted into U.S. dollars at that or
any other rate.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

a. Consolidation—The consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of the Bank and its significant
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Companies”). There were
nine (seven in 2023) consolidated subsidiaries as of
March 31, 2024.

Under the control and influence concepts, those
companies in which the Bank, directly or indirectly, is able
to exercise control over operations are fully consolidated.

All significant intercompany balances and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation. All material
unrealized profits included in assets resulting from
transactions within the Companies are eliminated in
consolidation.

(1) Scope of consolidation

Consolidated Subsidiaries

77 Digital Solutions Co., Ltd. and 77 Insurance Service
Co., Ltd. have been included in the scope of consolidation
from the year ended March 31, 2024, since these
companies were newly incorporated.

Unconsolidated Subsidiaries

77 Capital Co., Ltd.

77 New Business Investment Limited Partnership

77 Strategic Investment Limited Partnership

77 Capital Investment Limited Partnership 2

77 Strategic Investment Limited Partnership 2

77 Partners Investment Limited Partnership 1

Unconsolidated subsidiaries are excluded from the
scope of consolidation because they are not material to
the consolidated financial statements in terms of total
assets, income, net income (corresponding to the Bank’s
share), retained earnings (corresponding to the Bank’s
share) and accumulated other comprehensive income
(corresponding to the Bank’s share).

Companies Not Deemed as Subsidiaries While the
Majority of Their Voting Rights Are Held by the Bank
on Its Own Account

ORIl GIKEN LTD.

CADCAM Co., Ltd.

These companies are not treated as subsidiaries
because the Bank’s unconsolidated subsidiaries engaged
in investment and related businesses made investments
in these companies for investment and fostering
purposes, not for the purpose of making them
subsidiaries.

(2) Equity method
Unconsolidated Subsidiaries Accounted for by the
Equity Method
Not applicable
Affiliates Accounted for by the Equity Method
Not applicable
Unconsolidated Subsidiaries Not Accounted for by
the Equity Method

77 Capital Co., Ltd.

77 New Business Investment Limited Partnership

77 Strategic Investment Limited Partnership

77 Capital Investment Limited Partnership 2

77 Strategic Investment Limited Partnership 2

77 Partners Investment Limited Partnership 1

These companies are excluded from the scope of
equity method accounting because they are not material
to the consolidated financial statements in terms of net
income (corresponding to the Bank’s share), retained
earnings (corresponding to the Bank’s share) and
accumulated other comprehensive income
(corresponding to the Bank’s share).
Affiliates Not Accounted for by the Equity Method
Not applicable

b.Business Combinations—Business combinations are
accounted for using the purchase method. Acquisition-
related costs, such as advisory fees or professional fees,
are accounted for as expenses in the periods in which the
costs are incurred. If the initial accounting for a business
combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting
period in which the business combination occurs, an
acquirer shall report in its financial statements provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. During the measurement period, which shall
not exceed one year from the acquisition, the acquirer
shall retrospectively adjust the provisional amounts
recognized at the acquisition date to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that



existed as of the acquisition date and that would have
affected the measurement of the amounts recognized as
of that date. Such adjustments shall be recognized as if
the accounting for the business combination had been
completed at the acquisition date. A parent’s ownership
interest in a subsidiary might change if the parent
purchases or sells ownership interests in its subsidiary.
The carrying amount of noncontrolling interest is adjusted
to reflect the change in the parent’s ownership interest in
its subsidiary while the parent retains its controlling
interest in its subsidiary. Any difference between the fair
value of the consideration received or paid and the
amount by which the noncontrolling interest is adjusted is
accounted for as capital surplus as long as the parent
retains control over its subsidiary.

c. Cash and Cash Equivalents—For the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash and amounts due from the
Bank of Japan.

d. Trading Account Securities, Investment Securities
and Money Held in Trust—Securities other than
investments in affiliates are classified into three categories,
based principally on the Companies’ intent, as follows: (1)
trading account securities, which are held for the purpose
of earning capital gains in the near term, are reported at
fair value and the related unrealized gains and losses are
included in earnings; (2) held-to-maturity debt securities,
which are expected to be held to maturity with the positive
intent and ability to hold to maturity, are reported at
amortized cost; and (3) available-for-sale securities, which
are not classified as either of the aforementioned
securities, are reported at fair value with unrealized gains
and losses, net of applicable taxes, reported in a separate
component of equity; however, equity securities, etc. which
do not have a market price are reported at cost determined
by the moving-average method.

The cost of trading account securities and available-for-
sale securities sold is determined based on the moving-
average method.

In addition, investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries
not accounted for by the equity method are reported at
cost determined by the moving-average method.

For other-than-temporary declines in fair value,
investment securities are reduced to net realizable value
by a charge to income.

Securities included in money held in trust are also
classified and accounted for using the same method as
above.

The components of trust assets are accounted for based
on the standard appropriate for each asset type.
Instruments held in trust for trading purposes are recorded
at fair value and unrealized gains and losses are recorded
in other income/expenses. Instruments held in trust
classified as available-for-sale are recorded at fair value
with the corresponding unrealized gains/losses recorded
directly in a separate component of equity. Instruments
held in trust classified as held to maturity are carried at
amortized cost.

e. Tangible Fixed Assets—Tangible fixed assets are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and gains
deferred on the sale and replacement of certain assets.
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets, except for lease
assets, is mainly computed using the declining-balance
method at rates based on the estimated useful lives of
the assets. The range of useful lives is principally from 5
to 31 years for buildings and from 4 to 20 years for

equipment. Lease assets under finance lease
transactions, in which substantial ownership is not
deemed to have been transferred, are depreciated using
the straight-line method over the lease term. The salvage
value is zero or the guaranteed amounts if specified in
the lease contracts (see Note 2.0).

f. Intangible Fixed Assets—The amortization of
intangible fixed assets is calculated using the straight-line
method. Capitalized costs of computer software
developed/obtained for internal use are amortized using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
five years.

g. Long-Lived Assets—The Companies review their
long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of
an asset or asset group may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss would be recognized if the carrying
amount of an asset or asset group exceeds the sum of
the undiscounted future cash flows expected to result
from the continued use and eventual disposition of the
asset or asset group. The impairment loss would be
measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of
the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of the discounted cash flows (‘DCFs”) from the
continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or the
net selling price at disposition.

h. Foreign Currency Items—Assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies held by the Bank at
year-end are translated into Japanese yen at the current
exchange rates in effect at each consolidated balance
sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are recognized in
the fiscal periods in which they occur.

i. Reserve for Loan Losses—The Bank determines the
amount of the reserve for loan losses by means of
management’s judgment and assessment of future losses
based on internal rules for write offs and provisions.

For loans to borrowers classified as legally bankrupt or
virtually bankrupt, the Bank fully provides the net amount
of loans and estimated collectible amounts by collateral
or guarantees. Regarding loans to borrowers classified as
possibly bankrupt, a specific reserve is provided to the
necessary extent for the net amount of loans and
estimated collectible amounts by collateral or guarantees.

For large debtors who are possibly bankrupt and
debtors requiring special attention, if the cash flows from
collection of the principal and interest can be reasonably
estimated, the reserve is provided based on the difference
between the relevant cash flows discounted by the initial
contractual interest rates and the carrying amounts of the
loans.

The reserve for other loan loss is recorded principally
at the amount of estimated losses over the next two or
three years. Estimated losses are determined by
calculating a loss rate based on the average of actual
loss rate over the past certain period, which is calculated
with credit loss experience over two or three years.
Adjustments are to be made as necessary in light of
future outlook and other factors.

All the loans are assessed by sales related department
in accordance with the self-assessment standard and the
results are audited by asset audit department
independent from the sales related department.

The Bank’s subsidiaries determine the reserve for loan
losses based on the actual loss rate or estimated collectible
amounts in accordance with the self-assessment standard.

THE 77 BANK FINANCIAL REPORT



(Notes)

1. Category of loans by debtor classification is defined as
below in compliance with the classification provided in
“Practical Guideline on Self-Assessment of Assets and
Audit of Bad Debts and Reserve for Loan Losses of
Banks and Other Financial Institutions” (the Japanese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “JICPA”)
Special Audit Committee Report No. 4 for Banks and
Other Financial Institutions issued on April 14, 2022),
that is, “normal debtors,” “debtors requiring caution,”
“possibly bankrupt debtors,” “virtually bankrupt debtors”
and “legally bankrupt debtors.”

Category Criteria

Legally Debtors who are legally or formally

bankrupt bankrupt

Virtually Debtors who are virtually bankrupt,

bankrupt experiencing serious financial difficulty
with no prospect of a turnaround,
although there are no existence of facts
of legal or formal bankruptcy

Possibly Debtors who are in financial difficulty

bankrupt and likely to become bankrupt in the
future, although they are not currently
bankrupt

Caution Debtors who have issues concerning
lending conditions, debtors who have
issues concerning the status of
fulfilment of obligations or debtors who
are in the red, experiencing sluggish or
unstable performances

Special Of the debtors classified as caution,
attention  those whose debts, either partially or

wholly, require special attention

Normal Debtors whose performance is

favorable and who are considered to
have no specific issues regarding
financial conditions

2. The loss rate is in principle defined as the average rate
of bad debts for a total of ten calculation periods
consisting of the recent five calculation periods on a
consolidated fiscal year-end basis and the recent five
calculation periods on an interim consolidated fiscal
year-end basis, but comparisons with the average rate
of bad debts for a total of four calculation periods
consisting of the recent two calculation periods on a
consolidated fiscal year-end basis and the recent two
calculation periods on an interim consolidated fiscal
year-end basis are also taken into account in the
calculation. Also, necessary adjustments are made by
referring to the average rate of bad debts for a number
of calculation periods to appropriately incorporate the
risk during the recession period.

J- Reserve for Stock-Based Benefits—Reserve for
stock-based benefits is provided for the grants of the
Bank’s shares to directors, etc. in accordance with the
stock grant program based on the estimated stock-based
benefits liabilities as of the fiscal year end.

k. Reserve for Contingent Losses—Reserve for
contingent losses is provided for the future estimated
payments of burden money to the Credit Guarantee
Corporations based on the historical experience of
subrogation.

I. Employees’ Retirement and Pension Plans—In
calculation of projected benefit obligations, expected
benefits are attributed to periods on a benefit formula
basis. Treatment of prior service cost and actuarial gains
and losses is as follows:

Prior service cost is charged to expenses when
incurred.

Unrecognized actuarial gains and losses are amortized
by the straight-line method from the following fiscal year
after the fiscal year when they were incurred over a
definite period (10 years) with the employees’ average
remaining service period when incurred.

Consolidated subsidiaries apply a shortcut method
whereby the amount of the retirement benefits required to
be paid if all the employees voluntarily retired at the end
of the fiscal year is regarded as projected benefit
obligations in determining the liability for employees’
retirement benefits and net periodic retirement benefit
costs.

m. Asset Retirement Obligations—The asset retirement
obligation is recognized as the sum of the DCFs required
for the future asset retirement and is recorded in the
period in which the obligation is incurred if a reasonable
estimate can be made. If a reasonable estimate of the
asset retirement obligation cannot be made in the period
the asset retirement obligation is incurred, the liability
should be recognized when a reasonable estimate of the
asset retirement obligation can be made. Upon initial
recognition of a liability for an asset retirement obligation,
an asset retirement cost is capitalized by increasing the
carrying amount of the related fixed asset by the amount
of the liability. The asset retirement cost is subsequently
allocated to expense through depreciation over the
remaining useful life of the asset. Over time, the liability is
accreted to its present value each period. Any subsequent
revisions to the timing or the amount of the original
estimate of undiscounted cash flows are reflected as an
increase or a decrease in the carrying amount of the
liability and the capitalized amount of the related asset
retirement cost.

n. Accounting for Significant Revenue and
Expenses—On March 31, 2020, the Accounting
Standards Board of Japan (“ASBJ”) issued ASBJ
Statement No. 29, “Accounting Standard for Revenue
Recognition.” The Bank has applied this standard and
recognizes revenue when control of a promised good or
service is transferred to a customer in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Bank expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services.

o.Leases

As a lessee

Finance lease transactions are capitalized to recognize
lease assets and lease obligations in the consolidated
balance sheet.

As a lessor

All finance leases that are deemed to transfer ownership
of the leased property to the lessee are recognized as
lease receivables, and all finance leases that are deemed
not to transfer ownership of the leased property to the
lessee are recognized as investments in leases.

p. Income Taxes—The provision for income taxes is
computed based on the pretax income included in the
consolidated statement of income. The asset and liability
approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets and
liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of



temporary differences between the carrying amounts and
the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred taxes are
measured by applying currently enacted tax laws to the
temporary differences.

q. Derivatives and Hedging Activities—It is the Bank’s
policy to use derivative financial instruments
(“derivatives”) primarily for the purpose of reducing
market risks associated with its assets and liabilities. The
Bank also utilizes derivatives to meet the needs of its
clients while entering into derivatives as a part of its
trading activities. The Bank enters into interest rate swaps
and interest rate swaptions as a means of hedging its
interest rate risk on certain loans and investment
securities and to meet the needs of its clients. The Bank
also enters into currency swaps, foreign exchange
forward contracts, and currency options to hedge foreign
currency exchange risk associated with its assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and to meet
the needs of its clients.

Derivatives are recognized as either assets or liabilities
and measured at fair value. Gains or losses on derivative
transactions are recognized in the consolidated statement
of income. If derivatives qualify for hedge accounting
because of high correlation and effectiveness between
the hedging instruments and the hedged items, the gains
or losses on derivatives are deferred until maturity of the
hedged transactions.

The interest rate swaps which qualify for hedge
accounting and meet specific matching criteria are not
remeasured at market value, but the differential paid or
received under the swap agreements is recognized and
included in interest expense or income (special matching
criteria).

r. Per Share Information—Basic net income per share is
computed by dividing net income attributable to common
stockholders by the weighted-average number of
common shares outstanding for the period, retroactively
adjusted for stock splits or share consolidation.

Cash dividends per share presented in the consolidated
statement of income are dividends applicable to the
respective years including dividends to be paid after the
end of the year.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Reserve for Loan Losses

Loans and bills discounted and related items constitute a

relatively large portion of the total assets in the

consolidated balance sheet, and recording of reserve for

loan losses has a significant impact on the financial

position and results of operations. Therefore, the Bank

considers reserve for loan losses as a significant

accounting estimate.

(1) Amount recorded in the consolidated financial
statements as of March 31, 2024 and 2023

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2024 2023 2024
Reserve for loan losses ¥62,015  ¥61,388 $409,583

(2) Information about the details of significant accounting
estimates for the identified item
i. Computation method
The method of computing reserve for loan losses is
stated in “i. Reserve for Loan Losses” under Note 2,
“Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.”

ii. Main assumptions

Main assumptions are the future prospects used in
the assessment of the category of loans by debtor
classification.

Debtor classification is assessed by
comprehensively taking into account profitability
projections, reasonableness of management
improvement plans, status of support from financial
institutions, etc., based on the characteristics of the
industry to which the debtor belongs, after verifying
the debtor’s ability to repay the debts based on the
financial position, cash management, cash flows,
etc. of the debtor and confirming the lending
conditions and the status of its fulfilment.

In addition, the Bank makes an assumption that
the impact of COVID-19 has weakened, but it will
continue for a certain period of time amid lingering
uncertainty about the impact on the credit risk of
debtors. Based on such assumption, with respect to
debtors of certain COVID-19-related restructured
loans, the loss rate is deemed to be equivalent to
that of debtors who are downgraded in classification
in terms of higher uncertainties about future
projection and other factors, and a reserve for loan
losses is recorded accordingly.

For some project finance loans, the Bank records
reserve for loan losses on the basis of estimated
cash flows, etc. concerning the collection of loan
principal and receipt of interest assuming that the
profitability of those projects will deteriorate to a
certain extent due to risks such as a sharp rise in
procurement costs.

.Impact on the consolidated financial statements for
the following fiscal year

If the assumptions used in the initial estimates
change due to changes in the debtors’
performances, this may have a significant impact on
reserve for loan losses in the consolidated financial
statements for the following fiscal year.

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the year and cash and due from banks in the
consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2024 and
2023, was as follows:
Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2024 2023 2024

¥1,288,993 ¥1,322,376  $8,513,262

Cash and due from banks
Due from banks, excluding
due from the Bank of Japan ~ (9,396)

Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of year

(11,443)  (62,056)

¥1,279,596 ¥1,310,932 $8,451,198
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5. TRADING ACCOUNT SECURITIES AND
INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Trading account securities as of March 31, 2024 and
2023, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2024 2023 2024
National governmentbonds ¥ 52 ¥ 197 $§ 343
Local government bonds 10,275 14,012 67,862
Other securities 5,999 6,000 39,620
Total ¥16,328 ¥20,210 $107,839

Investment securities as of March 31, 2024 and 2023,
consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2024 2023 2024
National government bonds ¥ 385,773 ¥ 300,273 $ 2,547,870
Local government bonds 792,107 916,241 5,231,536
Corporate bonds 718,304 835210 4,744,098
Equity securities 208,626 144,568 1,377,887
Other securities 972,317 850,485 6,421,748
Total ¥3,077,129 ¥3,046,780 $20,323,155

Investment in an unconsolidated subsidiary in the
amount of ¥25 million ($165 thousand) and ¥25 million
and investment in interest in partnership in the amount of
¥6,216 million ($41,054 thousand) and ¥4,749 million are
included in the above equity securities and other
securities as of March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

The carrying amounts and aggregate fair values of
securities as of March 31, 2024 and 2023, were as
follows:

Securities below include trading account securities and
investment securities:

Millions of Yen
2024
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

Securities classified as:
Trading ¥ 16,328
Available-for-sale:

Equity securities ¥ 60,723 ¥145532 ¥ 294 205,961
Debt securities 1,930,031 688 35,542 1,895,177
Other securities 901,098 76,257 16,285 961,070
Held-to-maturity 1,008 13 995
Millions of Yen
2023
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Securities classified as:
Trading ¥ 20,210
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities ¥ 61,749  ¥81907 ¥ 1,795 141,861
Debt securities 2,078,237 2,934 30,456 2,050,715
Other securities 811,400 48,100 18,402 841,098
Held-to-maturity 1,010 9 1,001

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2024
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

Securities classified as:
Trading $ 107,839
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities $ 401,050  $961,178
Debt securities 12,747,051 4,543 234,740 12,516,854
Other securities 5,951,377 503,645 107,555 6,347,467
Held-to-maturity 6,657 85 6,571

Securities, other than trading account securities
(excluding equity securities, etc. and investments in
partnerships which do not have a market price), whose
fair value significantly declined compared with the
acquisition cost and whose fair value is not considered
likely to recover to their acquisition cost, are written down
to the respective fair value. The related losses on
revaluation are charged to income for the fiscal year.

Impairment losses were recognized for available-for-
sale securities in the amount of ¥103 million ($680
thousand), consisting of ¥103 million ($680 thousand) of
other securities, and ¥91 million, consisting of ¥91 million
of other securities for the years ended March 31, 2024
and 2023, respectively.

The criteria for determining whether the fair value has
“significantly declined” are defined based on the asset
classification of the issuer in the internal standards for
asset quality self-assessment as follows:

(a) Normal issuers: Fair value declined by 50% or more

of the acquisition cost or fair value declined between
30% and 50% and average fair value during the
past one month declined by 50% or more (30% or
more for issuers who have credit risk more than a
certain level).

(b) Caution issuers: Fair value declined by 30% or more
of the acquisition cost.

(c) Legally bankrupt, virtually bankrupt, and possibly
bankrupt issuers: Fair value is lower than the
acquisition cost.

Caution issuers represent debtors who require careful
management going forward and normal issuers represent
debtors other than legally bankrupt, virtually bankrupt,
possibly bankrupt, and caution issuers.

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities for
the years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, were
¥290,006 million ($1,915,368 thousand) and ¥185,600
million, respectively. Gross realized gains and losses on
these sales, computed on a moving average cost basis,
were ¥14,946 million ($98,712 thousand) and ¥10,737
million ($70,913 thousand), respectively, for the year
ended March 31, 2024, and ¥6,838 million and ¥2,013
million, respectively, for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities as of
March 31, 2024 and 2023, consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2024 2023 2024

$ 1,941 1,360,286

Valuation differences:
Available-for-sale securities ¥170,164 ¥82,311 $1,123,862

Available-for-sale money
held in trust 7,788 3,176

Deferred tax liabilities (52,829) (25,569)

Unrealized gains on available-
for-sale securities

51,436
(348,913)

¥125,123 ¥59,919 $ 826,385




6. MONEY HELD IN TRUST

The carrying amounts and aggregate fair values of money
held in trust as of March 31, 2024 and 2023, were as
follows:

Non-performing Loans
Loans based on the Banking Act and the Act on
Emergency Measures for the Revitalization of the
Financial Functions are as follows:

Loans are comprised of items recorded in the accounts

Millions of Yen of corporate bonds included in “Investment securities” in
2024 the consolidated balance sheet (limited to those for which
Unrealized Unrealized Fair redemption of the principal and payment of interest is
Cost Gains Losses Value guaranteed in whole or in part and those issued through
Money held in trust private placement of securities (as provided by paragraph
classified as: 3 of Article 2 of the Financial Instruments and Exchange
Trading ¥ 91,166 Act)); loans and bills discounted; foreign exchanges
Available-for-sale  ¥21,581  ¥7,788 29,369 (assets); accrued interest and suspense payments
Total ¥21581 ¥7,788 ¥120,536 included in “Other assets,” customers’ liabilities for
- acceptances and guarantees; and securities used in
Millons of Yen securities lending transactions, if such transactions are
2023 performed as described in the accompanying note
Unrealized Unrealized Fair (limited to those under a loan-for-use or lease contract).
Cost Gains Losses Value
Thousands of
M&gggif?gédaig.trust Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Trading ¥ 89,799 2024 2023 2024
Available-for-sale  ¥21581  ¥3,176 24,758~ -oans o bankruptand
Total ¥21581 ¥3.176 ¥114.557 quasi-bankrupt borrowers ¥ 12,591 ¥ 13,011 $ 83,158
Doubtful loans 74,487 72,761 491,955
Thousands of U.S. Dollars Substandard loans 32,496 30464 214,622
2024 Delinquent loans past due
Unree_llized Unrealized Fair three months or more 1,242 1,326 8,202
, Cost  Gais  lLosses  Value Restructured loans 31,254 29137 206,419
Money held in trust Sub-total 119,575 116,237 789,743
Trading $602,113 Normal loans 5,824,163 5,531,841 38,466,171
Available-for-sale $142,533  $51,436 193,970 Total ¥5,943,739 ¥5,648,079 $39,255,921
Total $142,533 $51,436 $796,090 Loans to bankrupt and quasi-bankrupt borrowers are

Available-for-sale securities held in trust, whose fair
value significantly declined compared with the acquisition
cost and whose fair value is not considered likely to
recover to their acquisition cost, are written down to the
respective fair value.

No impairment loss was recognized for money held in
trust for the years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023.

7. LOANS AND BILLS DISCOUNTED

Loans and bills discounted as of March 31, 2024 and
2023, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2024 2023 2024
Bills discounted ¥ 5,508 ¥ 7,330 $ 36,378
Loans on bills 122,631 122,666 809,926
Loans on deeds 5,006,416 4,763,125 33,065,292

Overdrafts 719,960 664,265 4,755,035
Total ¥5,854,516 ¥5,557,388 $38,666,640

Bills Discounted

Bills discounted are accounted for as financial
transactions in accordance with “Treatment of Accounting
and Auditing of Application of Accounting Standard for
Financial Instruments in the Banking Industry” (JICPA
Industry Committee Practical Guideline No. 24). The
Bank has rights to sell or pledge these bills discounted.
The total of the face value of bills discounted was ¥5,508
million ($36,378 thousand) and ¥7,330 million as of
March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

loans to borrowers who have fallen into bankruptcy due
to initiation of bankruptcy proceedings, reorganization
proceedings, petition for commencement of rehabilitation
proceedings, or other reasons, and similar loans.

Doubtful loans are loans for which the borrower has not
yet entered into bankruptcy, but the financial condition
and business performance of the borrower have
deteriorated and it is highly probable that the principal
cannot be collected and interest cannot be received as
agreed, and those that do not fall under loans to bankrupt
and quasi-bankrupt borrowers.

Delinquent loans past due three months or more are
loans with principal or interest unpaid for three months or
more from the day after the agreed-upon payment date,
and those that do not fall under loans to bankrupt and
quasi-bankrupt borrowers or doubtful loans.

Restructured loans are loans that provide certain
concessions favorable to the borrowers with the intent of
facilitating the borrowers’ restructuring or otherwise
supporting them, such as by reducing or exempting
interest, postponing principal or interest payments,
releasing credits, or providing other benefits to the
borrowers. Restructured loans exclude loans to bankrupt
and quasi-bankrupt borrowers, doubtful loans, and
delinquent loans past due three months or more.

Normal loans are those that do not contain any problem
with the borrowers’ financial conditions or business
performance, and are not classified in any of the above
categories.

The amounts of the above loans are before deducting
reserve for loan losses.
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8. FOREIGN EXCHANGES

Foreign exchange assets and liabilities as of March 31,
2024 and 2023, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2024 2023 2024
Assets
Due from foreign correspondent
accounts ¥5178 ¥12,206 $34,198
Total ¥5178 ¥12,206 $34,198
Liabilities
Foreign exchange bills sold ¥ 40 ¥120 $ 264
Foreign exchange bills payable 252 217 1,664
Total ¥292 ¥338  $1,928

9. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

The accumulated depreciation of tangible fixed assets as
of March 31, 2024 and 2023, amounted to ¥85,388 million
($563,952 thousand) and ¥84,348 million, respectively.

As of March 31, 2024 and 2023, deferred gains for tax
purposes of ¥7,211 million ($47,625 thousand) and ¥7,363
million, respectively, on tangible fixed assets sold and
replaced with similar assets have been deducted from the
cost of newly acquired tangible fixed assets.

10. LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Bank recognized impairment losses of ¥34 million
($224 thousand) and ¥364 million on certain operating
branches, business premises, branches to be closed, and
unused facilities for the years ended March 31, 2024 and
2023, respectively.

The impairment losses were composed of ¥34 million
($224 thousand) on buildings for the year ended March
31, 2024, and ¥92 million on buildings, ¥251 million on
land and ¥20 million on other fixed assets for the year
ended March 31, 2023.

For the purpose of testing for impairment, the Bank
recognizes each individual branch office as a cash-
generating unit for which it continues to manage and
monitor identifiable cash flows. Branch offices to be
closed and facilities not in operation are individually
assessed for impairment. Subsidiaries recognize each
company as a cash-generating unit. An impairment loss
would be recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or
asset group exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future
cash flows expected to result from the continued use and
eventual disposition of the asset or asset group.

The impairment loss would be measured as the amount
by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of the DCFs from
the continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or
the net selling price at disposition. The DCFs were
calculated using discount rates of 12.2% and 11.0% for
the years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively,
and the net selling price was determined by quotation
from a third-party vendor.

11. CUSTOMERS’ LIABILITIES FOR ACCEPTANCES
AND GUARANTEES

All contingent liabilities arising from acceptances and
guarantees are reflected in “Acceptances and
guarantees.” “Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and
guarantees” are shown as assets, representing the
Bank’s right to receive indemnity from the applicants.
The amount of guarantee obligations for privately
placed corporate bonds included in investment securities
as of March 31, 2024 and 2023, was ¥44,381 million
($293,118 thousand) and ¥44,512 million, respectively.

12. TRUSTS WITH CONTRACT CLAUSE FOR
COVERING PRINCIPAL

The principal amount of trusts with a contract clause
covering the principal as of March 31, 2024 and 2023,
was as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2024 2023 2024
Money trusts ¥1,037 $6,848

13. ASSETS PLEDGED
Assets pledged as collateral and their relevant liabilities
as of March 31, 2024 and 2023, were as follows:

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2024 2023 2024

Millions of Yen

Assets pledged as collateral:

Investment securities ¥633,383 ¥409,462 $4,183,230

Loans and bills discounted 502,153 547,651 3,316,511
Other assets 144 144 951
Relevant liabilities to the above assets:
Deposits 35,502 45,407 234,475
Payables under securities
lending transactions 9,020 1,293 59,573
Borrowed money 796,800 631,470 5,262,532

In addition to the above, the following assets were
offered as collateral for exchange settlement transactions,
or as substitutes for future transaction initial margin and
others:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2024 2023 2024
Other assets ¥50,100 ¥50,100 $330,889

Of which:
Cash collateral paid for

financial instruments 5,671 4,547 37,454
Guarantee deposits for

leased tangible fixed assets 95 93 627

14. LOAN COMMITMENTS

Contracts of overdraft facilities and loan commitments are
contracts with customers to lend up to the prescribed
limits in response to customers’ applications for a loan, as
long as there is no violation of any condition within the
contracts. As of March 31, 2024, the unused amount of
such contracts totaled ¥1,646,400 million ($10,873,786
thousand), of which amounts with original agreement



terms of less than one year were ¥1,546,972 million
($10,217,105 thousand). As of March 31, 2023, the
unused amount of such contracts totaled ¥1,707,094
million, of which amounts with original agreement terms
of less than one year were ¥1,592,509 million.

Since many of the commitments expire without being
drawn upon, the unused amount does not necessarily
represent a future cash requirement. Most of these
contracts have conditions allowing the Companies to
refuse customers’ applications for a loan or decrease the
contract limits based on proper reasons (e.g., changes in
financial situation, deterioration in customers’
creditworthiness). At the inception of the contracts, the
Companies obtain collateral real estate, securities, etc., if
considered to be necessary. Subsequently, the
Companies perform a periodic review of the customers’
business results based on internal rules and take
necessary measures to reconsider conditions in contracts
and require additional collateral and guarantees.

15. DEPOSITS

Deposits as of March 31, 2024 and 2023, consisted of the
following:
Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2024 2023 2024
¥ 281,536¥% 251,410 % 1,859,428
6,335,036 6,182,520 41,840,274

Current deposits
Ordinary deposits

Deposits at notice 7,442 10,660 49,151
Time deposits 1,852,957 1,957,910 12,238,009
Negotiable certificates of deposit 232,970 236,500 1,538,669
Other deposits 225,161 246,788 1,487,094

Total ¥8,935,104 ¥8,885,791 $59,012,641

16. BORROWED MONEY

As of March 31, 2024 and 2023, the weighted-average
annual interest rates applicable to borrowed money were
0.006% and 0.028%, respectively.

Borrowed money consisted of borrowings from the
Bank of Japan and other financial institutions. Annual
maturities of borrowed money as of March 31, 2024, were
as follows:

Year Ending March 31 Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2025 ¥130,716 $ 863,324
2026 142,197 939,151
2027 192,905 1,274,057
2028 341,980 2,258,635
2029 374 2,470
2030 and thereafter 530 3,500

Total ¥808,703 $5,341,146

17. LIABILITY FOR EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT
BENEFITS

The Bank has severance payment plans as defined
benefit plans consisting of corporate pension fund plans
and lump-sum retirement payment plans for employees.
In addition, the Bank has established corporate defined
contribution pension plans as defined contribution plans.
The Bank has also established a retirement benefit trust
under the lump-sum retirement payment plan.

The consolidated subsidiaries have lump-sum
retirement payment plans as defined benefit plans and
corporate defined contribution pension plans as defined
contribution plans. For lump-sum retirement payment
plans, the consolidated subsidiaries calculate liability for
retirement benefit and retirement benefit costs using a
shortcut method.

(1) The changes in projected benefit obligations for the
years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, were as
follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2024 2023 2024

Balance at beginning of year ¥68,124 ¥69,225 $449,930
Service cost 1,610 1,651 10,633
Interest cost 434 441 2,366
Actuarial (gains) losses (7,484) 197  (49,428)
Benefits paid (3,261) (3,563) (21,537)
Others 174 172 1,149

Balance at end of year ¥59,598 ¥68,124 $393,619

(2) The changes in plan assets for the years ended March
31, 2024 and 2023, were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2024 2023 2024
Balance at beginning of year ¥52,164 ¥53,431 $344,521
Expected return on plan assets 1,464 1,497 9,669
Actuarial gains (losses) 5,047  (2,057) 33,333
Contributions from the

employer 1,210 1,200 7,991
Benefits paid (2,064) (2,080) (13,631)
Others 174 172 1,149

Balance at end of year ¥57,997 ¥52,164 $383,046

(3) Reconciliation between the liability recorded in the
consolidated balance sheet and the balances of
projected benefit obligations and plan assets as of
March 31, 2024 and 2023, was as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2024 2023 2024
Funded projected benefit obligations ¥ 59,449 ¥ 67,965 $ 392,635

Plan assets (57,997) (52,164) (383,046)
Total 1,451 15,800 9,583
Unfunded projected benefit obligations 149 159 984

Net liability arising from projected

benefit obligations ¥ 1,601 ¥15960 $ 10,573

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2024 2023 2024

Liability for employees’ retirement

benefits ¥7,720 ¥15,960 $ 50,987
Asset for employees’ retirement
benefits (6,119) (40,413)

Net liability arising from projected

benefit obligations ¥ 1,601 ¥15960 $ 10,573
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(4) The components of net periodic retirement benefit
costs for the years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023,
were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2024 2023 2024
Service cost ¥1,610 ¥1,651 $10,633
Interest cost 434 441 2,866
Expected return on plan assets ~ (1,464)  (1,497)  (9,669)
Recognized actuarial losses 1,691 1,406 11,168
Net periodic retirement benefit costs ¥ 2,272 ¥ 2,001  $15,005

Note: Employees’ contribution to corporate pension funds
is deducted.

(5) Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income
(before income tax effect) in respect of defined
retirement benefit plans for the years ended March 31,
2024 and 2023, were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2024 2023 2024
Actuarial gains (losses) ¥14,223  ¥(848) $93,936

Total ¥14,223  ¥(848) $93,936

(6) Amounts recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive income (before income tax effect) in
respect of defined retirement benefit plans as of March
31, 2024 and 2023, were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2024 2023 2024
Unrecognized actuarial (gains) losses  ¥(6,470)  ¥7,753 $(42,731)
Total ¥(6,470) ¥7,753 $(42,731)

(7) Plan assets as of March 31, 2024 and 2023

a. Components of plan assets
Plan assets consisted of the following:

2024 2023

Debt investments 8% 27%
Equity investments 35 29
Cash and cash equivalents 1 19
Life insurance company accounts (general accounts) 19 21
Call loans, etc. 7 4
Others 0 0

Total 100% 100%

Note: Total plan assets as of March 31, 2024 and 2023,
include retirement benefit trust established under
lump-sum payment plans by 19%.

b.Method of determining the long-term expected rate
of return on plan assets

The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined
considering allocation of plan assets that are expected
currently and in the future and the long-term rates of
return which are expected currently and in the future from
the various components of the plan assets.

(8) Assumptions used for the years ended March 31,
2024 and 2023, were set forth as follows:

2024 2023
Discount rate 1.5% 0.6%
Long-term expected rate of return on plan assets 2.8 2.8
Expected rate of salary increase 4.5 4.5

(9) Defined contribution

The amount required to be contributed to the defined
contribution plan of the Bank and its consolidated
subsidiaries was ¥264 million ($1,743 thousand) and
¥267 million for the years ended March 31, 2024 and
2023, respectively.

18.ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

Asset retirement obligations which were recognized on
the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2024 and
2023, were as follows:

a. Overview of asset retirement obligations

Asset retirement obligations are recognized for obligations
of restoring leased buildings, such as branch premises, to
their original state, based on the real estate lease
contracts and asbestos removal costs.

b. Calculation of asset retirement obligations

Asset retirement obligations are calculated based on the
estimated available periods of 16 to 31 years depending
on the expected useful lives of buildings using discount
rates from 0.139% to 2.319%.

c. The changes in asset retirement obligations for the
years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2024 2023 2024
Balance at beginning of year ¥608 ¥610 $4,015
Increase due to acquisition
of tangible assets 1 19 6
Reconciliation associated
with passage of time 5 5 33

Decrease due to execution of
asset retirement obligations (16) (27) (105)
Other (2) (13)
Balance at end of year ¥596 ¥608 $3,936

19. PERFORMANCE-LINKED STOCK
COMPENSATION SYSTEM

The Bank has introduced a performance-linked stock
compensation system (the “System”) based on the Board
Incentive Plan (“BIP”) trust from the perspective of
enhancing motivation to make contributions to improving
the medium- to long-term performance and corporate
value by further clarifying the linkage between
compensation to directors, etc. and stock value of the
Bank.

Under the System, the Bank’s shares are acquired
using the funds contributed by the Bank as compensation
to directors, etc. through the trust and such shares are
granted to directors, etc. through the trust according to
their ranks and achievement of management plans. Said
transactions are related to the System.



The Bank’s shares remaining in the trust are recorded
as treasury stock under “Equity” and the carrying amount
of such treasury stock was ¥1,134 million ($7,489
thousand) and ¥1,321 million and the number of shares
was 617 thousand shares and 719 thousand shares as of
March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

20. EQUITY

Japanese banks are subject to the Banking Law and to
the Companies Act of Japan (the “Companies Act’). The
significant provisions in the Companies Act and the
Banking Law that affect financial and accounting matters
are summarized below:

a. Dividends

Under the Companies Act, companies can pay dividends
at any time during the fiscal year in addition to the year-
end dividend upon resolution at the general meeting of
stockholders. For companies that meet certain criteria
such as (1) having a Board of Directors, (2) having
independent auditors, (3) having an Audit & Supervisory
Board, and (4) the term of service of the directors being
prescribed as one year rather than two years of normal
term by its articles of incorporation, the Board of Directors
may declare dividends (except for dividends-in-kind) at
any time during the fiscal year if the company has
prescribed so in its articles of incorporation. The Bank
meets all the above criteria. The Companies Act permits
companies to distribute dividends-in-kind (noncash
assets) to stockholders subject to certain limitations and
additional requirements. Semiannual interim dividends
may also be paid once a year upon resolution by the
Board of Directors if the articles of incorporation of the
company so stipulate. The Bank can do so because it
stipulates this in its articles of incorporation. The
Companies Act provides certain limitations on the
amounts available for dividends or the purchase of
treasury stock. The limitation is defined as the amount
available for distribution to the stockholders, but the
amount of net assets after dividends must be maintained
at no less than ¥3 million.

b. Increases/Decreases and Transfer of Common
Stock, Reserve and Surplus

The Banking Law requires that an amount equal to 20%
of dividends must be appropriated as a legal reserve (a
component of retained earnings) or as additional paid-in
capital (a component of capital surplus) depending on the
equity account charged upon the payment of such
dividends until the total of the aggregate amount of the
legal reserve and additional paid-in capital equals 100%
of stated capital.

Under the Companies Act and the Banking Law, the
aggregate amount of additional paid-in capital and the
legal reserve that exceeds 100% of the stated capital may
be made available for dividends by resolution of the
stockholders after transferring such excess to retained
earnings in accordance with the Companies Act. Under
the Companies Act, the total amount of additional paid-in
capital and the legal reserve may be reversed without
limitation. The Companies Act also provides that stated
capital, legal reserve, additional paid-in capital, other
capital surplus, and retained earnings can be transferred
among the accounts under certain conditions upon
resolution of the stockholders.

c. Treasury Stock and Treasury Stock Acquisition
Rights

The Companies Act also provides for companies to
purchase treasury stock and dispose of such treasury
stock by resolution of the Board of Directors. The amount
of treasury stock purchased cannot exceed the amount
available for distribution to the stockholders which is
determined by a specific formula. Under the Companies
Act, stock acquisition rights are presented as a separate
component of equity. The Companies Act also provides
that companies can purchase both treasury stock
acquisition rights and treasury stock. Such treasury stock
acquisition rights are presented as a separate component
of equity or deducted directly from stock acquisition rights.

21. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Other operating income for the years ended March 31,
2024 and 2023, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2024 2023 2024
Gain on sales and redemption
of bonds and other securites ¥ 422 ¥ 825 $ 2,787
Lease receipts 8,623 7,969 56,951
Other 5,423 5,612 35,816
Total ¥14,470 ¥14,407  $95,568

22. OTHER INCOME

Other income for the years ended March 31, 2024 and
2023, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2024 2023 2024
Gains on sales of tangible fixed assets ¥299 ¥ 385 $1,974
Other 497 676 3,282
Total ¥796 ¥1,061  $5,257

23. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Other operating expenses for the years ended March 31,
2024 and 2023, consisted of the following:
Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2024 2023 2024

Losses on sales, redemption
and devaluation of bonds and

other securities ¥14,241 ¥ 7,805 $ 94,055

Lease costs 7,911 7,331 52,248
Other 15,517 7,648 102,483
Total ¥37,670 ¥22,785 $248,794
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24. OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses for the years ended March 31, 2024 and
2023, consisted of the following:
Thousands of

A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory
tax rate and the actual effective tax rate reflected in the
accompanying consolidated statement of income for the
year ended March 31, 2024, was as follows, whereas the
reconciliation for the year ended March 31, 2023 is not

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars required under Japanese accounting standards since the
2024 2023 2024 difference is less than 5% of the normal effective statutory
Bad debt losses ¥ 24 ¥ 35 $ 158 tax rate.
Losses on dispositions of money 2024
held in trust 2,179 878 14,391 Normal effective statutory tax rate 30.5%
Losses on sales of loans 175 334 1,155 Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes,
Losses on impairments and such as entertainment expenses 0.2
disposals of fixed assets 279 665 1,842 Income not taxable for income tax purposes,
Provision for reserve for such as dividend income (0.9)
contingent losses 136 898 Inhabitants taxes 0.1
Other 374 748 2,470 Valuation allowance 2.2
Total ¥3,169 ¥2662 $20,929 Other—net 0.5
Total 32.6%

25. INCOME TAXES

The Companies are subject to Japanese national and
local income taxes which, in the aggregate, resulted in a
normal effective statutory tax rate of approximately 30.5%
for the years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023.

The tax effects of significant temporary differences
which resulted in deferred tax assets and liabilities as of
March 31, 2024 and 2023, were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2024 2023 2024

Deferred tax assets:
Reserve for loan losses
Liability for employees’

¥16,369 ¥ 15,650 $ 108,110

26. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

The components of other comprehensive income (loss) for
the years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2024 2023 2024

Unrealized gains (losses) on
available-for-sale securities:
Gain (loss) arising during the year ¥ 95,926 ¥(39,317) $ 633,551
Reclassification adjustment to
profit or loss
Amount before income tax effect
Income tax effect

(3,462) 93  (22,865)
92,464 (39,224) 610,686
(27,260) 11,717 (180,040)

retirement benefits 5,674 8,044 37,474
Fixed assets (depreciation) 4,936 4,985 32,600 Total ¥ 65,203 ¥(27,506) § 430,638
Losses on devaluation of Deferred (losses) gains on derivatives
investment securities 1,575 1,623 10,402 under hedge accounting:
Reserve for bonuses 590 598 3,896 Loss arising during the year ¥ (165)¥ (32)$ (1,089)
Other 5,423 5,132 35,816 Reclassification adjustment to
Less valuation allowance* (14,570) (13,620) (96,228) profit or loss 122 130 805
Total 20,000 22,414 132,091 Amount before income tax effect (42) 98 (277)
Deferred tax liabilities: Income tax effect 12 (29) 79
Unrealized gains on available- Total ¥ (29 68$ (191)
for-sale securities’ . 52,829 25,569 348,913 Defined retirement benefit plans:
Assetfor employees retirement Gain (loss) arising during the year ¥ 12,531 ¥ (2,255)$ 82,762
.beneflts ) 2,148 14,186 Reclassification adjustment to
Fixed assets (deferred gain profit or loss 1,691 1,406 11,168
on sales and replacements) 261 273 1,723 Amount before income tax effect 14,223 (848) 93,936
Other 19 163 125 Income tax effect (4,323) 257  (28,551)
Total - 55,258 26,006 364,956 Total ¥ 9899 ¥ (590)$ 65,378
Net deferred tax liabilities ¥(35,258) ¥ (3,591) $(232,864) T —
otal other comprehensive income
* Valuation allowance increased by ¥950 million ($6,274 (loss) ¥ 75,073 ¥(28,027) $ 495,825

thousand) as of March 31, 2024. This increase was
mainly due to an increase in valuation allowance for
reserve for loan losses recorded by the Bank and its
consolidated subsidiaries of ¥1,134 million ($7,489
thousand).




27. LEASES

Finance Leases

Lessor
A subsidiary leases certain equipment and other assets
to various customers.

The net investments in leases as of March 31, 2024
and 2023, are summarized as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2024 2023 2024
Gross lease receivables ¥21,374 ¥20,265 $141,166
Estimated residual values 2,479 1,844 16,372
Unearned interest income (2,202) (1,942) (14,543)

Investments in leases ¥21,651 ¥20,167 $142,995

Maturities of lease receivables for finance leases as of
March 31, 2024, are as follows:

Year Ending March 31

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2025 ¥ 198 $1,307
2026 178 1,175
2027 166 1,096
2028 158 1,043
2029 122 805
2030 and thereafter 227 1,499

Total ¥1,053 $6,954

Maturities of investment in leases for finance leases as
of March 31, 2024, are as follows:

Year Ending March 31 Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2025 ¥ 6,550 $ 43,260
2026 5,220 34,475
2027 3,823 25,249
2028 2,689 17,759
2029 1,514 9,999
2030 and thereafter 1,576 10,408

Total ¥21,374 $141,166

Operating Leases

Lessee
Future minimum payments under noncancelable
operating leases as of March 31, 2024, are as follows:

Year Ending March 31 Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2025 ¥ 80 $ 528
2026 and thereafter 1,353 8,936
Total ¥1,433 $9,464

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED
DISCLOSURES

a. Status of Financial Instruments
(1) Group policy for financial instruments
The Companies provide financial services such as credit
card business and leasing operations in addition to banking
operations. In the course of these operations, the
Companies raise funds principally through deposit taking
and invest funds in loans, securities, and others. As such,
the Bank holds financial assets and liabilities which are
subject to fluctuation in interest rates, etc. and conducts
comprehensive Asset and Liability Management (“ALM”) to
avoid unfavorable effects from interest rate fluctuations,
etc. Derivatives are also employed by the Bank as part of
ALM.
(2) Nature and extent of risks arising from financial
instruments
Financial assets held by the Companies mainly consist of
loans to domestic corporations, local government
agencies, and individual customers which are exposed to
credit risk that the Companies may suffer from losses
resulting from nonperformance of borrowers and interest
rate risk that the Companies may suffer from losses
resulting from fluctuations in interest rates.

Securities, mainly debt securities, equity securities, and
investment trusts are held to maturity and for other
purposes and also certain debt securities are held for the
purpose of selling to customers. These securities are
exposed to credit risk of issuers and market risks of
fluctuations in interest rates and market prices. In
addition, they are exposed to market liquidity risk that the
Companies may suffer from losses resulting from
difficulties in executing financial transactions in certain
environments such as market turmoil.

Financial liabilities, mainly consisting of liquid deposits
or time deposits taken from corporate and individual
customers, are exposed to cash flow risk that the Bank
may experience a situation where unexpected cash flows
are incurred in certain environments where the credit
rating of the Bank may be lowered and, accordingly,
necessary funding may become difficult.

Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are
exposed to foreign exchange risk that the Bank may
suffer from losses resulting from fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates.

Derivatives mainly include interest rate swaps and bond
futures, which are used to manage exposure to market
risks from changes in interest rates of loans and debt
securities, and currency swaps and foreign exchange
forward contracts, which are used to hedge foreign
exchange risk associated with foreign currency-
denominated assets and liabilities. Hedge accounting is
applied to certain hedging activities related to loans and
debt securities as hedged items.
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(3) Risk management for financial instruments

Credit Risk Management

The Bank has established the “Credit Risk Control Policy”
as a basic policy for credit risk management and various
rules concerning credit risk management. Based on these
policies and rules, the Bank clarifies fundamental
approaches to secure the soundness of assets and
control procedures for identifying, monitoring, and
controlling credit risk. Additionally, the Bank utilizes the
“Credit Rating System” from the viewpoint of carrying out
appropriate screening and management based on the
risk characteristics of the credit recipient.

In addition, as an organization responsible for credit
risk management, credit risk control functions and review
control functions have been established to secure the
effectiveness of credit risk management.

The Risk Management Division, as a credit risk control
function, is engaged in identifying the level of future
possible credit risk and the status of credit concentration
in major borrowers through measurement of the level of
credit risk and analysis of credit portfolios.

The Credit Supervision Division, as a review control
function, is engaged in reviewing lending operations
based on strict examination standards, system
development for strengthening the daily control of loan
receivables, and appropriate maintenance of operational
procedures.

Market Risk Management

(a) Market risk management system

The Bank has established the “Market Risk Control
Policy” as a basic policy for market risk management and
various rules concerning market risk management. Based
on these policies and rules, the Bank clarifies
fundamental approaches for appropriate market risk
control operations and control procedures for identifying,
monitoring and controlling market risk.

As an organization responsible for market risk
management, a market risk control function (middle
office) has been established and furthermore, the
operating function (front office) and the administration
function (back office) have been separated. Additionally,
market risk control function staffs are assigned to the
operating function to secure the effectiveness of market
risk management.

The Risk Management Division, as a market risk
control function, measures the level of market risk of the
Bank as a whole using Value-at-Risk (“VaR”) approach
models and other models and regularly monitors the
status of compliance with position limits and loss limits
established according to the type and characteristics of
transactions to control the level of market risk within a
certain range.

In addition, an ALM and Income Control Committee
was established for the purpose of analyzing flexible
investment strategies in order to prevent risks resulting
from fluctuations in interest rates and market prices, while
forecasting future interest rates, market prices, and trends
of fund and business conditions. The committee is also
responsible for securing the soundness of management
and improving profitability at the same time based on
appropriate asset and liability management through the
unification of risk management and earnings control.

(b) Quantitative information about market risk

The Bank adopts the variance-covariance method
(holding period: 125 business days for strategic equity
securities and 60 business days for others; confidence
interval: 99.0%; observation period: 250 business days)
in computing the VaR with respect to money held in trust,

investment securities, Japanese yen deposits and loans,
and Japanese yen money market funds. The volume of
market risk (estimated losses) that the Bank is exposed
to as of March 31, 2024, amounts to ¥129,523 million
($855,445 thousand) (¥122,334 million in 2023) as a
whole. However, the risk under certain abnormal market
fluctuations may not be captured since, under the VaR
method, the volume of market risk under a definite
probability of statistically computed incidence is measured
based on historical market fluctuations.

The Bank implements back testing to compare the VaR
computed by the model with actual profit and loss in the
investment securities and confirms that the measurement
model in use captures the market risk with sufficient
precision.

Liquidity Risk Management

The Bank has established the “Liquidity Risk Control
Policy” as a basic policy for liquidity risk management and
various rules concerning liquidity risk management.
Based on these policies and rules, the Bank clarifies
fundamental approaches for stable funding of operations
and control procedures for identifying, monitoring and
controlling liquidity risk. In addition, the Bank has
established the “Contingency Plan for Liquidity” to enable
it to make quick and correct responses to unexpected
events.

Furthermore, as an organization responsible for liquidity
risk management, a liquidity risk control function has
been established and a cash management function and a
settlement control function have been established to
control daily cash management and settlement related to
cash and securities.

The Risk Management Division, as a liquidity risk
control function, manages the liquidity risk of the Bank as
a whole by identifying, monitoring and controlling liquidity
risk.

The Treasury Administration and International Division,
as a cash management control function and settlement
control function, prepares daily or monthly cash flow
projections and conducts cash management by identifying
possible funds and liquidity of assets and verifying the
concentration of settlement of major account funds to a
certain date. The Division also controls settlement by
identifying the status of settlement through systems such
as the BOJ-NET and among financial institutions.

Risk Management System of Subsidiaries

The subsidiaries have a risk management system similar

to that of the Bank.

(4) Supplementary explanation about fair values of
financial instruments

Since certain assumptions are used in calculating the fair

values of financial instruments, the outcome of such

calculation may vary if different assumptions are used.



b. Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount, fair value, and unrealized gain/loss
of the financial instruments as of March 31, 2024 and
2023, are disclosed below. Note that equity securities,
etc. which do not have a market price and investments in
partnerships are not included in the following table (see
Note 1 below). Notes on cash and due from banks are
omitted because they are settled in a short period of time
and their fair value approximates carrying amount. Also,
immaterial accounts in terms of the carrying amount are

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Carrying Unrealized

March 31, 2024 Amount Fair Value Gain/Loss

(1) Money heldintrust ~ $ 796,090 $ 796,090

(2) Investment securities 20,231,272 20,231,186  $ (85)
Held-to-maturity securities 6,657 6,571 (85)
Available-for-sale securities 20,224,615 20,224,615

(3) Loans and bills discounted 38,666,640
Reserve for loan losses*'  (399,927)

omitted: 38,266,712 38,030,288 (236,424)
Millions of Yen Total assets $59,294,075 $59,057,565  $(236,510)
Carrying : Unrealized (1) Deposits $59,012,641 $59,013,189 §$ 548
x)alr\jzn:'hze?j?n ¥ A1“‘2°6’”5t36 ;T;ﬁ';;s Gain/Loss (2) Borrowed money 5341146 5287,827  (53,318)
iy ' ’ Total liabilities $64,353,787 $64,301,023  $ (52,764)
(2) Investment securities 3,063,217 3,063,204 ¥  (13) Sorivatves™.
Held-to-maturity securities 1,008 995 (13) Towhich he dg.je accouniing
Available-for-sale securities 3,062,209 3,062,209 is not applied $  (26140)$  (26.140)
(3) Loans and bills discounted 5,854,516 Towhich hedge accounting ’ ’
Reserve for loan losses” (60,553) i applied (1,571) (1,571)
5,793,963 5,758,166 (35,797) Total derivatives $  (27,719)$  (27,719)
Total assets ¥8,977,716 ¥8,941,906  ¥(35,810)

(1) Deposits ¥8,935,104 ¥8,935187 ¥ 83
(2) Borrowed money 808,703 800,630 (8,073)
Total liabilities ¥9,743,807 ¥9,735,818 ¥ (7,989)
Derivatives*2:
To which hedge accounting
is not applied ¥ (3,958) ¥ (3,958)
To which hedge accounting
is applied*® (238) (238)
Total derivatives ¥ (4197) ¥ (4,197)

March 31, 2023
(1) Money held in trust

¥ 114,557 ¥ 114,557

(2) Investment securities 3,034,685 3,034,676 ¥ (9)
Held-to-maturity securities 1,010 1,001 (9)
Available-for-sale securities 3,033,675 3,033,675

(3) Loans and bills discounted 5,557,388

Reserve for loan losses*! (59,746)
5,497,642 5,479,832 (17,809)
Total assets ¥8,646,885 ¥8,629,066  ¥(17,818)

(1) Deposits ¥8,885,791 ¥8,885,799 ¥ 8
(2) Borrowed money 642,303 642,243 (60)
Total liabilities ¥9,528,095 ¥9,528,043 ¥  (51)
Derivatives*2:
To which hedge accounting
is not applied ¥ (263) ¥ (263)
To which hedge accounting
is applied” (114) (114)
Total derivatives ¥ (377) ¥ (377)

*1 General and specific reserves for loan loss
corresponding to loans and bills discounted are
deducted.

*2 Derivatives recorded under other assets and liabilities
are presented in a lump sum.

Net receivables and payables arising from derivative
transactions are presented in net amounts and
numbers in parenthesis denote net payables.

*3 These derivatives are interest rate swaps, efc.
designated as hedging instruments to fix the cash
flows of loans, etc., which are hedged items, and
principally deferral hedges are applied. Furthermore,
“Practical Solution on the Treatment of Hedge
Accounting for Financial Instruments that Reference
LIBOR’ (Practical Issue Task Force (PITF) No. 40,
March 17, 2022) is applied to these hedging
relationships.

Notes: 1. The carrying amount of equity securities, etc.
which do not have a market price and
investments in partnerships are as follows.
These instruments are not included in
“Available-for-sale securities” in the above table
regarding the fair value of financial instruments.

Carrying Amount

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Category 2024 2023 2024
Unlisted equity securities*'*> ¥ 2,665 ¥2,707  $17,601
Investments in partnerships*? 11,246 9,387 74,275

*1 The fair values of unlisted equity securities are not
disclosed in accordance with paragraph 5 of
“Implementation Guidance on Disclosures about Fair
Value of Financial Instruments” (ASBJ Guidance No.
19, March 31, 2020).

*2 No impairment losses were recognized for the years
ended March 31, 2024 and 2023.

*3 The fair values of investments in partnerships are not
disclosed in accordance with paragraph 24-16 of the
“Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for
Fair Value Measurement” (ASBJ Guidance No. 31,
June 17, 2021).
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2. Maturity analysis for financial assets and securities with contractual maturities as of March 31, 2024

Millions of Yen

Due in 1 Year or Due after 1 Year Due after 3 Years Due after 5 Years ~ Due after 7 Years Due after 10
through 3 Years through 5 Years through 7 Years through 10 Years Years
Due from banks ¥1,232,439
Investment securities 309,797 ¥ 646,286 ¥ 605,355 ¥437,381 ¥320,462 ¥ 363,033
Held-to-maturity securities 1,000
Local government bonds 1,000
Available-for-sale securities
with contractual maturities 309,797 646,286 604,355 437,381 320,462 363,033
National government bonds 7,000 2,100 40,000 27,000 78,000 246,500
Local government bonds 83,484 213,169 176,469 207,756 109,611 8,934
Corporate bonds 122,005 198,992 167,927 133,399 86,300 16,153
Other 97,306 232,024 219,958 69,225 46,551 91,445
Loans and bills discounted* 1,291,710 961,100 860,374 554,463 587,050 1,473,268
Total ¥2,833,946 ¥1,607,386 ¥1,465,730 ¥991,844 ¥907,512 ¥1,836,302
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Due in 1 Year or Due after 1 Year Due after 3 Years Due after 5 Years ~ Due after 7 Years Due after 10
Less through 3 Years through 5 Years through 7 Years through 10 Years Years
Due from banks $ 8,139,746
Investment securities 2,046,080 $ 4,268,449 $3,998,117 $2,888,719 $2,116,518 $ 2,397,681
Held-to-maturity securities 6,604
Local government bonds 6,604
Available-for-sale securities
with contractual maturities 2,046,080 4,268,449 3,991,513 2,888,719 2,116,518 2,397,681
National government bonds 46,232 13,869 264,183 178,323 515,157 1,628,029
Local government bonds 551,377 1,407,892 1,165,504 1,372,141 723,935 59,005
Corporate bonds 805,792 1,314,259 1,109,087 881,044 569,975 106,683
Other 642,665 1,532,421 1,452,730 457,202 307,449 603,956
Loans and bills discounted* 8,531,206 6,347,665 5,682,411 3,661,997 3,877,220 9,730,321
Total $18,717,033 $10,616,115 $9,680,536 $6,550,716  $5,993,738  $12,128,010

* Of loans and bills discounted, the portion whose timing of collection is unforeseeable, such as loans to “legally bankrupt” borrowers,
loans to “virtually bankrupt” borrowers, and loans to ‘possibly bankrupt” borrowers, amounting to ¥86,651 million ($572,293 thousand)
is not included in the above table. Loans that do not have a contractual maturity, amounting to ¥39,897 million ($263,503 thousand), are

not included either.

3. Repayment schedule of bonds, borrowed money, and other interest-bearing liabilities subsequent to March 31, 2024

Millions of Yen

Due in 1 Year or Due after 1 Year Due after 3 Years ~ Due after 5 Years  Due after 7 Years Due after 10
Less through 3 Years through 5 Years through 7 Years  through 10 Years Years
Deposits* ¥8,579,884 ¥298,315 ¥ 56,905
Borrowed money 130,716 335,102 342,354 ¥113 ¥157 ¥258
Total ¥8,710,600 ¥633,417 ¥399,259 ¥113 ¥157 ¥258
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
el Gedallr  fagedler GemAS RagriEr S
Deposits* $56,666,560 $1,970,246 $ 375,833
Borrowed money 863,324 2,213,209 2,261,105 $746 $1,036 $1,703
Total $57,529,885 $4,183,455 $2,636,939 $746 $1,036 $1,703

* Demand deposits included in deposits are presented under “Due in 1 year or less.”
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c. Financial Instruments Categorized by Fair Value Hierarchy
The fair value of financial instruments is categorized into the following three levels, depending on the observability and

significance of the inputs used in making fair value measurement:

Level 1: Fair value measured using observable inputs, i.e. quoted prices in active markets for assets or liabilities that are

the subject of the measurement

Level 2: Fair value measured using observable inputs other than Level 1 inputs
Level 3: Fair value measured using unobservable inputs

If multiple inputs are used that are significant to the fair value measurement, the fair value measurement is categorized
in its entirety in the level of the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

(1) Financial instruments measured at fair value

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Money held in trust ¥ 43,326 ¥ 77,209 ¥ 120,536
Investment securities:
Available-for-sale securities:
National and local government bonds 385,773 385,773
Local government bonds 791,099 791,099
Corporate bonds 674,094 ¥44,209 718,304
Equity securities 200,546 5,415 205,961
Other 130,795 830,275 961,070
Total assets ¥760,442 ¥2,378,093 ¥44,209 ¥3,182,745
Derivatives™:
Interest rate-related ¥ 238 ¥ 238
Currency-related (4,436) (4,436)
Total derivatives ¥ (4,197) ¥ (4,197)
Millions of Yen
March 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Money held in trust ¥ 42,993 ¥ 71,564 ¥ 114,557
Investment securities:
Available-for-sale securities:
National and local government bonds 300,273 300,273
Local government bonds 915,231 915,231
Corporate bonds 790,835 ¥44 374 835,210
Equity securities 138,116 3,744 141,861
Other 108,749 732,348 841,098
Total assets ¥590,132 ¥2 513,724 ¥44,374 ¥3,148,232
Derivatives™:
Interest rate-related ¥ 125 ¥ 125
Currency-related (502) (502)
Total derivatives ¥ (377) ¥ (377)
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
March 31, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Money held in trust $ 286,150 $ 509,933 $ 796,090
Investment securities:
Available-for-sale securities:
National and local government bonds 2,547,870 2,547,870
Local government bonds 5,224,879 5,224,879
Corporate bonds 4,452,110 $291,982 4,744,098
Equity securities 1,324,522 35,763 1,360,286
Other 863,846 5,483,620 6,347,467
Total assets $5,022,402 $15,706,313 $291,982 $21,020,705
Derivatives™:
Interest rate-related $ 1,571 $ 1,571
Currency-related (29,297) (29,297)
Total derivatives $  (27,719) $ (27,719)

* Derivatives recorded under other assets and liabilities are presented in a lump sum.
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Net receivables and payables arising from derivative transactions are presented in net amounts and numbers in

parenthesis denote net payables.

(2) Financial instruments other than those measured at fair value

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investment securities:
Held-to-maturity securities:
Local government bonds ¥ 995 ¥ 995
Loans and bills discounted ¥5,758,166 5,758,166
Total assets ¥ 995 ¥5,758,166 ¥5,759,161
Deposits ¥8,935,187 ¥8,935,187
Borrowed money 800,630 800,630
Total liabilities ¥9,735,818 ¥9,735,818
Millions of Yen
March 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investment securities:
Held-to-maturity securities:
Local government bonds ¥ 1,001 ¥ 1,001
Loans and bills discounted ¥5,479,832 5,479,832
Total assets ¥ 1,001 ¥5,479,832 ¥5,480,833
Deposits ¥8,885,799 ¥8,885,799
Borrowed money 642,243 642,243
Total liabilities ¥9,528,043 ¥9,528,043
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
March 31, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investment securities:
Held-to-maturity securities:
Local government bonds $ 6,571 $ 6,571
Loans and bills discounted $38,030,288 38,030,288
Total assets $ 6,571 $38,030,288 $38,036,860
Deposits $59,013,189 $59,013,189
Borrowed money 5,287,827 5,287,827
Total liabilities $64,301,023 $64,301,023

Notes: 1. A description of the valuation techniques and inputs used in the fair value measurement

Assets
Money held in trust

private placement bonds, the fair value is determined
using the future cash flows (coupons, redemption

For securities that are part of trust property in an
independently managed monetary trust with the
primary purpose to manage securities, the fair values
of equity securities are determined using the quoted
price of the stock exchange and the fair values of debt
securities are determined using the quoted price of
Japan Securities Dealers Association or the price
calculated by counterparty financial institutions. The
level of fair value is determined based on the level of
trust property and classified as Level 1 or Level 2. See
Note 6, “Money Held in Trust” for information on money
held in trust by holding purpose.

Investment securities
The fair values of debt securities excluding private
placement bonds are determined using quoted price of
Japan Securities Dealers Association or the price
calculated by counterparty financial institutions, and
Japanese government bonds and U.S. treasury bonds
are principally classified as Level 1 while other debt
securities are classified as Level 2. With respect to

amount of principal, guarantee fees) discounted at an
interest rate considering the market interest rates and
issuers’ credit risk, and is classified as Level 3.

The fair values of equity securities are determined
using the quoted price of the stock exchange and
principally classified as Level 1 based on the market
activity.

The fair values of listed investment trusts are
determined using the quoted price of the stock
exchange and principally classified as Level 1 based
on the market activity while those of private placement
investment trusts are determined based on the unit
price and classified as Level 2.

Loans and bills discounted
Loans and bills discounted are grouped by the type of
loan, internal ratings, and maturity length, and their fair
value is determined by discounting the total amount of
principal and interest by the market interest rate plus
the standard spread (including expense ratio) for each
credit rating according to the nature of instruments.



With respect to loans with floating interest rates and
loans with short contractual terms (within one year), for
which the difference between fair value and carrying
amount is within a certain range and considered to be
approximate, the carrying amount is presented as the
fair value.

For loans to legally, virtually, or possibly bankrupt
borrowers, the estimated uncollectible amounts are
calculated based on the present value of estimated
future cash flows or the estimated amount to be
collected through collateral and guarantees. Therefore,
the fair value of such loans approximates the carrying
amount of receivables at the balance sheet date less
the amount of reserve for loan losses, and such
amount is used as the fair value.

For loans for which the repayment due date is not
defined because of the characteristics that the loan
amount is limited within the pledged assets, the
carrying amount is presented as the fair value since
fair value approximates carrying amount considering
the expected repayment schedule and terms of the
interest rates.

These loans are classified as Level 3.

Liabilities

Deposits
Regarding demand deposits, the amount payable as of
the balance sheet date (i.e., the carrying amount) is
considered to be the fair value. Time deposits and
negotiable certificates of deposit are grouped by
maturity length, and the fair value is determined using
the present value of the sum of the principal and
interest discounted at the market interest rate. For
deposits with maturities within a short time period
(within one year) and whose fair value approximates
carrying amount, the carrying amount is presented as
the fair value. The fair value of these deposits is
classified as Level 2.

Borrowed money
For each type of borrowed money financed, the fair
value is determined based on the present value of the
sum of the principal and interest discounted at the
market interest rate. The carrying amount is presented
as the fair value if the maturity is within a short time
period (within one year) and fair value approximates
carrying amount. The fair value of borrowed money is
classified as Level 2.

Derivatives
Because derivative transactions are over-the-counter
transactions and there are no published quoted market
prices, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques such as present value method and Black-
Scholes model depending on the type of transaction
and the period to maturity. Main inputs used for
valuation techniques include interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, volatilities, etc.

The fair value of derivatives is classified as Level 2

since unobservable inputs are not used, or their impact
is immaterial.

2. Information about Level 3 fair value of financial instruments carried on the consolidated balance sheet at fair value
(1) Quantitative information on significant unobservable inputs

Weighted
Significant Scope of Average of
March 31, 2024 Valuation Techniques Unobservable Inputs Inputs Inputs
Investment securities:
Available-for-sale securities: Present value method Default probability 0.15%-6.62% 0.83%
Private placement bonds Loss rate at default 46.39% 46.39%
March 31, 2023
Investment securities:
Available-for-sale securities: Present value method Default probability 0.22%-4.75% 0.87%
Private placement bonds Loss rate at default 45.24% 45.24%
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(2) A reconciliation from the beginning balances to the
ending balances and gains or losses on valuation
included in profit or loss for the period

Investment Securities:
Available-for-Sale Securities
Private Placement Bonds

Millions of ~ Thousands of
March 31, 2024 Yen U.S. Dollars
Beginning balance ¥44,374 $293,071
Profit or loss or other
comprehensive income:
Recorded in profit or loss™ (103) (680)
Recorded in other
comprehensive income™ (32) (211)
Net amount of purchases,
sales, issuances, and
settlements (29) (191)
Ending balance ¥44,209 $291,982
Gains or losses on valuation
of financial assets and
financial liabilities held at
the balance sheet date
included in profit or loss
for the period™ ¥ (103) $ (680)

Investment Securities:
Available-for-Sale Securities
Private Placement Bonds

March 31, 2023 Millions of Yen

Beginning balance ¥45,792
Profit or loss or other
comprehensive income:

Recorded in profit or loss™ (91)

Recorded in other

comprehensive income™ (3)

Net amount of purchases,

sales, issuances, and

settlements (1,322)
Ending balance ¥44,374

Gains or losses on valuation
of financial assets and
financial liabilities held at
the balance sheet date
included in profit or loss
for the period*’ ¥ (91)

*1 Included in “Other operating expenses” in the
consolidated statement of income.

*2 Included in “Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-
sale securities” under “Other comprehensive income
(loss)” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

(3) A description of valuation processes used for fair value
measurements
The Bank measures fair value according to the policies
and procedures for fair value measurement established
by its Risk Management Division. In measuring fair value,
a valuation model that most appropriately reflects the
nature, characteristics and risks of each asset is used,
and the Risk Management Division determines the level
of fair value classification.

In addition, when using quoted prices obtained from
third parties, the Bank verifies whether the prices are
valid using appropriate methods, such as confirming the
valuation techniques and inputs used and comparing
them with the fair value of similar financial instruments.

(4) A description of sensitivity of the fair value
measurement to changes in significant unobservable
inputs

Significant unobservable inputs used in measurement of

fair value of private placement bonds are default

probability and loss rate at default. In general, a

significant increase (decrease) in the default probability

will result in an increase (decrease) in loss rate at default
and a significant decrease (increase) in fair value.

29. DERIVATIVES

It is the Bank’s policy to use derivatives primarily for the
purpose of reducing market risks associated with its assets
and liabilities. The Bank also utilizes derivatives to meet
the needs of its clients while entering into derivatives as a
part of its trading activities.

The Bank enters into interest rate swaps and interest
rate swaptions as a means of hedging its interest rate risk
on certain loans and investment securities while entering
into interest rate swaps and interest rate swaptions to
meet the needs of its clients.

The Bank also enters into currency swaps, foreign
exchange forward contracts, and currency options to
hedge foreign exchange risk associated with its assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and to
meet the needs of its clients.

Derivatives are subject to market risk and credit risk.
Market risk is the exposure created by potential
fluctuations of market conditions, including interest or
foreign exchange rates. Credit risk is the possibility that a
loss may result from a counterparty’s failure to perform its
obligations under a contract.

The Bank sets limits on credit risk for those derivatives
by limiting the counterparties to major financial institutions
and securities companies and establishing maximum risk
exposures to the counterparties.

The Bank has established a standard of risk
management including management approaches for each
type of risk. Derivative transactions entered into by the
Bank have been made in accordance with internal policies
which regulate trading activities and credit risk
management including maximum risk exposures and loss-
cutting rules. Concerning risk management associated
with derivative transactions, the front and back offices of
the trading divisions are clearly separated and risk
managers are assigned to the trading divisions, while the
Risk Management Division synthetically manages the
Bank’s market risks. In this manner, an internal control
system is effectively secured.

The Bank’s positions, gain and loss, risk amount, and
other conditions are periodically reported to the executive
committee.



The Bank has the following derivatives contracts outstanding as of March 31, 2024 and 2023:

Derivative Transactions to Which Hedge Accounting Is Not Applied
With respect to derivatives to which hedge accounting is not applied, contract or notional amount, fair value, and unrealized
gains/losses are as shown below. Note that the contract or notional amounts of the derivatives which are shown in the table
do not represent the amounts of the Bank’s exposure to credit or market risk.

Millions of Yen

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
2024 2023 2024
Contract or Notional Contract or Notional Contract or Notional
Amount Amount Amount
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Due after  Fair Gains/ Due after  Fair Gains/ Due after  Fair Gains/
Total One Year Value Losses Total One Year Value Losses Total One Year Value Losses

Interest rate-related
over-the-counter
(“OTC”) transactions:
Interest rate swaps:
Fixed rate receipt/
floating rate payment ¥ 26,582 ¥ 26,582 ¥ (873) ¥ (873)
Floating rate receipt/

fixed rate payment 26,670 26,670 1,094 1,094
Currency-related OTC
transactions:
Currency swaps 43,761 42,013 172 172

Foreign exchange
forward contracts:

Selling 331,339 53,318 (11,606) (11,606)
Buying 58,048 53313 7,255 7,255
Currency option:

Selling 146,357 122,623  (628) 1,035
Buying 146,357 122623 628 104

¥ 27568 % 27568 ¥ (494) ¥ (494)

27668 27668 733 733
41913 40578 (34)  (34)
264,810 48243 (3036) (3,036)
54787 48239 2567 2,567
142,801 120997  (367) 950
142,801 120997 367 331

$ 175,563 $175,563 $ (5,765) $ (5,765)

176,144 176,144 7225 7,225
289,023 277478 1,135 1,135
2,188,356 352,143 (76,652) (76,652)
383,382 352,110 47,916 47,916
966,627 809,873 (4,147) 6,835
966,627 809,873 4,147 686

Note: The above transactions are stated at fair value and unrealized gains (losses) for the years ended March 31, 2024
and 2023, are recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

Derivative Transactions to Which Hedge Accounting Is Applied
With respect to derivatives to which hedge accounting is applied, contract or notional amount and fair value are as shown
below. Note that the contract or notional amounts of the derivatives which are shown in the table do not represent the

amounts of the Bank’s exposure to market risk.

(1) Interest rate-related transactions
March 31, 2024

Millions of Yen

Contract or Notional Amount

Due after

Hedge Accounting Method Type of Derivatives ~ Major Hedged Item Total One Year Fair Value
Normal method Interest rate swaps—  Loans and
Floating rate receipt/ investment
fixed rate payment securities ¥13,844 ¥11,109 ¥ 17
Special matching criteria Interest rate swaps—
Floating rate receipt/
fixed rate payment Loans 25,364 24,901 415
Total ¥433
March 31, 2023 Millions of Yen
Contract or Notional Amount
Hedge Accounting Method Type of Derivatives ~ Major Hedged Item Total 8%2 ?(gg: Fair Value
Normal method Interest rate swaps—  Loans and
Floating rate receipt/ investment
fixed rate payment securities ¥21,691 ¥19,760 ¥(114)
Special matching criteria Interest rate swaps—
Floating rate receipt/
fixed rate payment Loans 28,444 27,700 284
Total ¥ 170
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March 31, 2024 Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Contract or Notional Amount
Due after

Hedge Accounting Method Type of Derivatives ~ Major Hedged Item Total One Year Fair Value
Normal method Interest rate swaps—  Loans and
Floating rate receipt/ investment
fixed rate payment securities $ 91,433 $ 73,370 $ 112
Special matching criteria Interest rate swaps—
Floating rate receipt/
fixed rate payment Loans 167,518 164,460 2,740
Total $2,859

Note: These are principally accounted for under the deferral hedge method in accordance with the JICPA Industry
Committee Practical Guideline No. 24, “Treatment of Accounting and Auditing of Application of Accounting Standard
for Financial Instruments in the Banking Industry.”

(2) Currency-related transactions

March 31, 2024 Millions of Yen
Contract or Notional Amount
Hedge Accounting Method Type of Derivatives  Major Hedged Item Total ng %tg; Fair Value
Normal method Currency swaps Foreign currency
denominated loans ¥9,084 ¥9,084 ¥(256)
Total ¥(256)
March 31, 2023
There were no transactions to be reported.
March 31, 2024 Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Contract or Notional Amount
Hedge Accounting Method Type of Derivatives ~ Major Hedged Item Total 8?]2 3{22; Fair Value
Normal method Currency swaps Foreign currency
denominated loans ~ $59,996 $59,996 $(1,690)
Total $(1,690)

Note: These are principally accounted for under the deferral hedge method in accordance with the JICPA Industry
Committee Practical Guideline No. 25, “Treatment of Accounting and Auditing of Accounting for Foreign Currency
Transactions in the Banking Industry.”

30. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related-party transactions for the years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, were as follows:
a. Transactions between the Bank and Its Related Parties

Transactions for the Year*3 Balance at End of Year
Thousands Thousands
- of U.S. - of U.S.
Millions of Yen Dollars Millions of Yen Dollars
Related Party Account Classification*2 2024 2023 2024 2024 2023 2024

Department Store Fujisaki Co., Ltd.*! Loans and bills discounted ¥3,682 ¥3,788  $24,318 ¥3,664 ¥3,711 $24,199

Investment securities
(corporate bonds) 1,200 1,200 7,925 1,200 1,200 7,925

Customers’ liabilities for
acceptances and

guarantees 382 363 2,522 439 359 2,899
Fuji Styling Co., Ltd.*! Loans and bills discounted 172 205 1,135 170 183 1,122
Fujisaki Agency Co., Ltd.*! Customers’ liabilities for

acceptances and

guarantees 1,175 1,195 7,760 1,200 1,200 7,925

Notes:*' Company whose voting rights are majority owned by a director or his close relatives (including subsidiaries of
such company)
* Terms are substantially the same as for similar transactions with third parties.
* Amounts of transactions were reported at the average balance for the period.



b. Transactions between Consolidated Subsidiaries and Their Related Parties

Transactions for the Year Balance at End of Year
Thousands Thousands
- of U.S. - of U.S.
Millions of Yen Dollars Millions of Yen Dollars
Related Party Account Classification*2 2024 2023 2024 2024 2023 2024
Department Store Fujisaki Co., Ltd.*! Fees and commissions ¥43 ¥38 $283

Notes:*' Company whose voting rights are majority owned by a director or his close relatives (including subsidiaries of
such company)
*2 Terms are substantially the same as for similar transactions with third parties.

31. DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Revenues from contracts with customers on a disaggregated basis for the years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, were
as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2024 2023 2024
Income ¥150,552 ¥122,053 $994,333
Of which:

Fees and commissions 21,410 19,896 141,404
Of which:

Deposit taking and lending business 6,917 6,540 45,683

Foreign exchanges 5,563 5,515 36,741

Securities related business 1,783 921 1,775

Agency business 2,641 2,945 17,442

Custody, safe-deposit box business 86 88 567

Trust fees 20 132

Revenue based on ASBJ Statement No. 10, “Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments” is included in the above.
Useful information in understanding revenue from contracts with customers is omitted since it is immaterial.

32. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Description of Reportable Segments
The Companies are principally engaged in the banking business and also leasing business and other financial services.
The reportable segments of the Companies are the segments for which separate financial information is available, and
are subject to periodic review by the chief operating decision maker to determine the allocation of management resources
and assess performance.

Segment information is omitted because the reportable segments of the Companies consist only of the “Banking”
segment and since the “Other” segment is immaterial.

Related Information for the Years Ended March 31, 2024 and 2023
Information by Service Line

Millions of Yen

2024
Securities
Loan Investment Lease Other Total
External customers ¥51,971 ¥61,495 ¥11,749 ¥25,336 ¥150,552
Millions of Yen
2023
Securities
Loan Investment Lease Other Total
External customers ¥46,663 ¥39,707 ¥10,863 ¥24,819 ¥122,053
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2024
Securities
Loan Investment Lease Other Total
External customers $343,246 $406,148 $77,597 $167,333 $994,333
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Information about Geographical Area

Information about geographical areas is omitted because the Companies conduct banking and other related activities
only in Japan and do not have foreign subsidiaries or foreign branches.

Information about Major Customers

Information about major customers is not presented because there are no customers who account for over 10% of
ordinary income.

Information about Asset Impairment Losses

Information about asset impairment losses for the years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, is omitted because the only
reportable segment is “Banking” and “Other” is immaterial.

33. NET INCOME PER SHARE

Basic net income per share (“EPS”) for the years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, is as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of Shares Yen U.S. Dollars
Net Income .
Attributable to Weighted-Average EPS
Year Ended March 31, 2024 Owners of the Parent Shares
Basic EPS—Net income attributable
to common stockholders ¥29,802 74,059 ¥402.40 $2.65
Year Ended March 31, 2023
Basic EPS—Net income attributable
to common stockholders ¥25,056 73,969 ¥338.74

The Bank’s shares held by the directors’ compensation BIP trust that are recorded as treasury stock under “Equity” are
included in the treasury stock to be deducted when computing the average number of shares during the fiscal year for
the calculation of basic EPS.

The average number of shares of the treasury stock deducted in computing basic EPS was 645 thousand shares and
737 thousand shares, for the years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Diluted EPS for the years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, is not shown because there were no potential shares.

34. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Cash Dividends
At the Bank’s general meeting of stockholders held on June 27, 2024, the Bank’s stockholders approved the following
appropriations of retained earnings:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen  U.S. Dollars

Year-end cash dividends, ¥67.50
($0.445) per share ¥5,042 $33,300

Note: The above total amount of cash dividends includes dividends for the Bank’s shares held by BIP trust in an amount
of ¥41 million ($270 thousand).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Direciors of The 77 Bank, Lid.:
=Audit of Consalidated Financial Statemants>
Opinian

We have audited the consclidated financial staements of The 77 Bank, Ltd, and its consolidatad
subskdiaries (the "Graup™), whith comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2024, and the
congolidated statement of income, consolidated statement of comprahensive income, consolidaled
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash fows for the year thén ended, and
nedes 1o the conselidated financial stalemants, inchsding a swmmary of signficant accounting policies, all
expressed in Japanese yean.

In our opition, the atcompatying consolidated financial statemants present fairy, in all materal
respecis, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of March 31, 2024, and s consolidated
financial performance and ils consolidated cash flows Tor the year then ended in accordance with

accounting principles genarally aceapted in Japan,
Convenience Translation

O audit also comprehendad the franskation of Japanese yen amounts into U5, doltar amounts and, In
gur opinion, such ranslation has been made in accordancs with the basis stated in Mote 1 to the
consolidated financial statements. Such U5, dollar amounts are presented solely for the convenlenca of
readers oulside Japan,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our awdl in acoondance with auditing standards generally acceplad in Japan. Our
rezpongibilities under those standards are further describad in the Auditor's Responsibilies for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements secton of cur rapor. We are independent of the Groug in
accordance with the provisions of the Code of Professional Ethics in Japan, and we have fulfiled our
oiher athical responssbiities as sedfors, We believe that the audit evidance we have obtalned ks
sufficiant and appropaiate o provide a basis for our opinion,

Kay Audit Matter

A ey audit matter is a matter that, in our professional judgment, was of most significance in o audit of
thiz consalidated financial statemants of the current pedod. The matter was addressed in ihe conbext of
our audit of the consolidated financial stalements as a whole, and in ferming our opinion thareon, and we

oo not provide & separale opinion on the maiter
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Appropriatenass. of Debtor Classification for Large Deblors in Determination of Resene for Loan Losses

Hiey Audit Matter Deseriplion

How the Kay Audit Matter Was
Addressead in the Audit

The Group recognized a resarse for loan lossas of
WE2 billion cores g to leans and bills
discounted of ¥5,854.5 billion in the consolidated
balance shiel a5 of March 31, 2024,

As described in MNote 2, “Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies—Reserve for Loan Losses™ io
the condolidated financial staternents, the resera
for loan losses is determined based on debior
classifications. The debtor classifications ane
judged comprehensively considering factors such
as the debtor's cash managemant, the repayment
ability based on cash Sows, profitability projections,
feasibility of manageament improvemant plans and
status of support from financial nstitulions,

The Group establshes a method to determing the
reserve for loan lossaes 1o be applied for sach
debtor classification. Therefore, determination of
the debtor classification for large debbors may have
a material impact on the amount of the reserve for
loan losses.

In particular, when the debior classification ks
determined based on the feasibdity of management
improvement plans, it s highly dependent upon
fubure: outiooks such as the profitability projecton
and the feasibility of cost-Cutting moasunes.

Bacauss these fulure cullooks require assumplions
about changes in the debtoe's fnancial
performance, such as industry demand trends, the
estsmalion has a high degrae of uncariainty and
requares significant judgments made by
managament.

Therefore, we ientified the appropriateness of
cartain large deblors' debior classifications which
are highly depandent wpon the profitatslity
projection and the feasibility of cost-culling
Meases in management mprovement plans as a
key audit matber.

Cur audit procedures related o this key audit
matier included the following, among othars:

{1) Test of the affectivenass of intemnal controls:

T We tested the affectivensss of intarnal
conirods over the raview and approval of
the appropriate dablor classification for
large delbbors in accordance wilh the Group
sel-assessment standard by inguiring of
the Crodit Supervision Division, as a
revsigw control function, and inspecting the
suppoting matenals.

@ We tested the effectiveness of intermal
controls over tha accuracy of debiors’
financial information usad in Intemal
controls referrad 1o abowe by Inguiring of
the Credit Superasion Division and
inpecting the supporting materiaks.

(2] Tastof the appropriabeness of the debtor
classificaticn:

T ‘We evalualed management's assumplions
about fulure outlceoks of the deblors
selacted for tasting, swch as the profiability
projecton and the feassbility of cost-cutting
measunas in improsement
plans, by inguiring of the Credil
Supervision Division, conducting a
comparative analysis of the financial data
such as the tatest financial resulis, and
inspecting e relevant materials such as
the self-assessment documents prepared
by the Group.

@ We evaluated the reascnableness of
assumptions regarding market trends in
tha redevant industries in which the
management improvement plan reles
upon by confirming consistency with
mailable exlemnal nformation, such as
siatislical data.

Other iInfermation

Oitheir information compeises the information included In the Group's disclosure documents
accompanying the audited consclidated financial staternents, bul does not include the consolidated

financial stalements and our auditer's repor theneon.

W determined that no such information exdsted and therefore, we did not perform any work thereon,




Responsibilities of Managemant and the Audit and Supervisory Committes for the Consolidated
Financial Statemants

Managemeant Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statemeants in accordance with accounting principles ganerally accepted in Japan, and for such inlermal
conlrl &% manasgement determines is necessany o enabla the preparation of conselidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud o emor.

in praparing the consalidated financial slalermems, managemant is responsible for assessing the Groug's
ability 1o continwes as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable. matiers relaled to going concam in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepied in Japan and using the gaing concem basis of
accounting unless managemant eithar intends 1o Bqukdate the Group o b caase operations, of has no
raalistic altemative but 1o do 2o,

The Awdit and Supervisory Committes is responsible for ovarseaing the Directors’ execution of duties
refating fo the design and operating effectiveness of the controls over the Group's financial reporing
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Auwdit of the Consolidated Financial Statemants

Ower objectives ara to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial stataments
as a whole are free from material misstatemeant, whether due to fraud o emor, and b0 Bsue an awediors
regon that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guaraniesa thal an audit conductad in sccordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan
will abevarys dedect a mabeial misstalement when it exists. Misstalemants can arise from frawd or esmor
and are considersd matesial if, indiviguwally or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expecied to
influanca the economic decisions of users takan on the basls of these consolidated financial slaterments.

As part of an audil in accordance with auditing standards generally accepied in Japan, we exercise
professional pdgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the swdit. We also:

¢ |dantify and assess the risks of matarial misstatement of the conseldated Snancial statements,
whather due to fraud or efmor, design and perform audil procedures responshag 1o those rsks, The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgmant, In addition, wea oblain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriaie 1o provide a basis for gur opinion. The risk of not detecting & material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ona resulting from emror, a8 fraud may inmotve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresantations, of the override of inbesnal eankrod,

= Obtain, when performing risk assessmen procedures, an undarstanding of intemal control relevant fo
the mdil in order (o design audit procedures that are appropriale in the circumstencas, but not for the
purpese of expressing an opindon on the effectivenass of the Group's intemal control.

= Evaluate the appropriatenass of acoounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimales and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concam basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty axists related bo avents or
condiions that mday cas significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concem. If we
conclude thal a malerial uncerainty exisis, we ara required (o draw attention in our awditor's repodt fo
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial staternents or, If such disclosures are inadequans,
b moddfy our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the sudil evidence oblained up 1o the date of our
audited's report. Howewer, Tutwne events of conditicns may cause the Group o ceasa 1o continue as a

going concem.,

= Evalusie whether the ovarall preseniation and disclosures of the consolidated financial staterments ars
in gccondance with atcounting principles generally accepted in Japan, as well as the ovarall
prasentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statemeants, including the discloswres,
and whather the consclidaled financial statements represent the undertying ransaclions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presaniation,
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= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the antities or
bussiness aclivities within the Group o express an opinkon on the consclidaied financial statemeants,
Wa are responsibde for the direction, supervision and performance of the groug audil. ¥We remain
solaly responsible for our awdil opinion,

We communicate with the Auwd®t and Supervisory Commities regarding. among othar matiars, the
planned scopa and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, ncluding any sagnificant deficiencias
in internal condrol that we idenity during owr audil

W also provide the Audit and Supanvisory Committes with 8 statement that we have complied with
redevant athical requirements regarding independenca, and commundcate with it all relationships and

othar matlers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our ndependance, and whara applicable,
schions laken o aliminate threals or safequards applied,

From the: matters communicated with the Audit and Superdisory Commitiea, we delermine those matters
that were of most significance in the awdit of the consolidated financial stalements of the curment pesiocd
and are tharafore the key audii matters, We describe these majters in our audilor's repor unless lw of
reguilation preciudes public disclosure about the matter or whien, in extremaly rare circumstances, wo
determing thal & matber should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequeencas of
dging 5o would reascnably be expaclad (o outweigh the public interest banefits of such communication,

<Fee-Related Infermations

Fees for audit and olher senvices for the year ended March 31, 2024, which were charged by us and our
niabwark firms 1o The 77 Bank, Lid. and its subsidiaries wene 886 milkon and ¥23 milllon, respactively,

Interest Reguired to Be Disclosed by the Certified Public Accountants Act of Japan

Cur firm and its designated engagement partner do not have any interest in the Group which is required
b b disclosed pursuant to the provisions of the Certified Public Accountants Act of Japan.

MTM. TadmaZaw LLC

August 8, 2024
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